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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

(Mark One)

x QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended June 30, 2010

OR

¨ TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from                      to                     

Commission File No. 001-32594

HEARTLAND PAYMENT SYSTEMS, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)
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Delaware 22-3755714
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification Number)

90 Nassau Street, Princeton, New Jersey 08542

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(609) 683-3831

(Registrant�s telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.    x  YES    ¨  NO

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or
for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files).    ¨  YES    ¨  NO

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definition of �large accelerated filer,� �accelerated filer� and �smaller reporting company� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer ¨ Accelerated filer x

Non-accelerated filer ¨  (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company ¨
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).    ¨  YES    x  NO

As of August 3, 2010, there were 38,084,126 shares of the registrant�s Common Stock, $0.001 par value, outstanding.
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PART I. CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements
Heartland Payment Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets

(In thousands, except share data)

(unaudited)

June 30,
2010

December 31,
2009

Assets
Current assets:
Cash $ 44,976 $ 32,113
Funds held for payroll customers 26,065 29,667
Receivables, net 167,367 149,403
Investments held to maturity 1,382 1,450
Inventory 11,588 12,381
Prepaid expenses 6,644 8,874
Current tax asset 16,329 16,266
Current deferred tax assets, net 22,714 42,760

Total current assets 297,065 292,914
Capitalized customer acquisition costs, net 63,555 72,038
Property and equipment, net 100,589 99,989
Goodwill 61,492 60,962
Intangible assets, net 31,966 34,637
Deposits and other assets, net 824 1,666

Total assets $ 555,491 $ 562,206

Liabilities and stockholders� equity
Current liabilities:
Due to sponsor banks $ 56,146 $ 80,007
Accounts payable 35,838 32,305
Deposits held for payroll customers 26,065 29,667
Current portion of borrowings 111,516 58,547
Current portion of accrued buyout liability 8,582 9,306
Merchant deposits and loss reserves 29,885 27,214
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 27,777 30,456
Reserve for processing system intrusion 42,282 99,911

Total current liabilities 338,091 367,413
Deferred tax liabilities, net 17,742 21,448
Reserve for unrecognized tax benefits 1,431 1,391
Long-term portion of borrowings 4,174 8,419
Long-term portion of accrued buyout liability 37,066 33,580

Total liabilities 398,504 432,251
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Commitments and contingencies (Note 12) �  �  

Equity
Common Stock, $0.001 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized, 38,057,288 and 37,524,298 shares issued
and outstanding at June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009 38 38
Additional paid-in capital 179,223 171,736
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (662) (546) 
Accumulated deficit (21,873) (41,487) 

Total stockholders� equity 156,726 129,741
Noncontrolling interests 261 214

Total equity 156,987 129,955

Total liabilities and equity $ 555,491 $ 562,206

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Heartland Payment Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss)

(In thousands, except per share data)

(unaudited)

Three Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2010 2009 2010 2009
Total Revenues $ 475,881 $ 417,373 $ 887,037 $ 789,545

Costs of Services:
Interchange 330,735 291,235 611,785 548,607
Dues, assessments and fees 30,004 19,586 56,274 35,866
Processing and servicing 59,322 49,866 116,340 97,922
Customer acquisition costs 12,820 12,757 26,185 25,332
Depreciation and amortization 3,756 3,874 7,510 7,608

Total costs of services 436,637 377,318 818,094 715,335
General and administrative 24,094 24,430 51,194 49,463

Total expenses 460,731 401,748 869,288 764,798

Income from operations 15,150 15,625 17,749 24,747

Other income (expense):
Interest income 37 28 68 57
Interest expense (1,170) (545) (2,271) (1,086) 
(Provision for) recovery of processing system intrusion costs (4,854) (19,380) 15,510 (31,970) 
Other, net 1,075 2 2,020 4

Total other income (expense) (4,912) (19,895) 15,327 (32,995) 

Income (loss) before income taxes 10,238 (4,270) 33,076 (8,248) 
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes 4,064 (1,669) 12,658 (3,170) 

Net income (loss) 6,174 (2,601) 20,418 (5,078) 
Less: Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests 31 14 47 (8) 

Net income (loss) attributable to Heartland $ 6,143 $ (2,615) $ 20,371 $ (5,070) 

Net income (loss) $ 6,174 $ (2,601) $ 20,418 $ (5,078) 
Other comprehensive income:
Unrealized gains on investments, net of income tax of $10, $14, $23 and $7 12 24 37 13
Foreign currency translation adjustment (479) 727 (153) 469

Comprehensive income (loss) 5,707 (1,850) 20,302 (4,596) 
Less: Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests 31 14 47 (8) 

Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Heartland $ 5,676 $ (1,864) $ 20,255 $ (4,588) 
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Earnings (loss) per common share:
Basic $ 0.16 $ (0.07) $ 0.54 $ (0.14) 
Diluted $ 0.16 $ (0.07) $ 0.52 $ (0.14) 
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:
Basic 37,935 37,458 37,782 37,496
Diluted 39,343 37,748 39,171 37,795

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Heartland Payment Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Stockholders� Equity

(In thousands)

(unaudited)

Heartland Stockholders� Equity
Common Stock

Additional

Paid-In

Capital

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Loss

(Accumulated
Deficit)
Retained
Earnings

Treasury
Stock

Noncontrolling

Minority

Interests
Total
EquityShares Amount

Six Months Ended June 30, 2009:
Balance, January 1, 2009 37,676 $ 38 $ 167,337 $ (2,145) $ 14,014 $ �  $ 119 $ 179,363
Issuance of Common Stock �
options exercised 135 �  530 �  �  �  �  530
Excess tax benefit on stock
options exercised �  �  322 �  �  �  �  322
Repurchase of Common Stock (350) �  �  �  �  (3,202) �  (3,202) 
Retirement of Treasury Stock �  �  (1,556) �  (1,646) 3,202 �  �  
Stock-based compensation �  �  1,096 �  �  �  �  1,096
Accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss):
Unrealized losses on available for
sale investments �  �  �  13 �  �  �  13
Foreign currency translation
adjustment �  �  �  469 �  �  4 473
Dividends on Common Stock �  �  �  �  (1,311) �  �  (1,311) 
Net loss for the period �  �  �  �  (5,070) �  (8) (5,078) 

Balance June 30, 2009 37,461 $ 38 $ 167,729 $ (1,663) $ 5,987 $ �  $ 115 $ 172,206

Six months Ended June 30, 2010:
Balance, January 1, 2010 37,524 $ 38 $ 171,736 $ (546) $ (41,487) $ �  $ 214 $ 129,955
Issuance of Common Stock �
options exercised 480 �  3,857 �  �  �  �  3,857
Issuance of Common Stock � RSU�s
Vested 53 �  (522) (522) 
Excess tax benefit on stock
options exercised �  �  1,363 �  �  �  �  1,363
Stock-based compensation �  �  2,789 �  �  �  �  2,789
Accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss):
Unrealized gain on available for
sale investments �  �  �  37 �  �  �  37
Foreign currency translation
adjustment �  �  �  (153) �  �  �  (153) 
Dividends on Common Stock �  �  �  �  (757) �  �  (757) 
Net income for the period �  �  �  �  20,371 �  47 20,418

Balance June 30, 2010 38,057 $ 38 $ 179,223 $ (662) $ (21,873) $ �  $ 261 $ 156,987

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Heartland Payment Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow

(In thousands)

(unaudited)

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2010 2009
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income (loss) attributable to Heartland $ 20,371 $ (5,070) 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Amortization of capitalized customer acquisition costs 27,612 28,451
Other depreciation and amortization 12,609 10,204
Addition to loss reserves 5,962 3,203
Provision for doubtful receivables 584 548
Stock-based compensation 2,789 1,096
Deferred taxes 16,319 (5,757) 
Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests 47 (8) 
Other 22 �  
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Increase in receivables (18,558) (11,924) 
Decrease (increase) in inventory 790 (347) 
Payment of signing bonuses, net (11,403) (17,765) 
Increase in capitalized customer acquisition costs (7,726) (8,195) 
Decrease in prepaid expenses 2,229 1,906
Decrease (increase) in current tax asset 1,299 (2,287) 
Decrease (increase) in deposits and other assets 821 (1,482) 
Excess tax benefits on options exercised (1,363) (322) 
Increase (decrease) in reserve for unrecognized tax benefits 40 (27) 
(Decrease) increase in due to sponsor bank (23,860) 16,324
Increase in accounts payable 2,886 3,284
Decrease in accrued expenses and other liabilities (3,194) (3,227) 
(Decrease) increase in merchant deposits and loss reserves (3,291) 13,798
(Decrease) increase in reserve for processing system intrusion (57,629) 14,399
Payouts of accrued buyout liability (3,537) (4,904) 
Increase in accrued buyout liability 6,299 5,076

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (29,882) 36,974

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investments held to maturity (1,195) (569) 
Maturities of investments held to maturity 1,263 589
Decrease (increase) in funds held for payroll customers 3,663 (3,139) 
(Decrease) increase in deposits held for payroll customers (3,602) 3,162
Purchases of property and equipment (10,577) (25,222) 

Net cash used in investing activities (10,448) (25,179) 

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 53,000 �  
Principal payments on borrowings (4,276) (4,269) 
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Proceeds from exercise of stock options 3,857 530
Excess tax benefits on options exercised 1,363 322
Repurchase of common stock �  (3,202) 
Dividends paid on common stock (757) (1,311) 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 53,187 (7,930) 

Net increase in cash 12,857 3,865
Effect of exchange rates on cash 6 19
Cash at beginning of year 32,113 27,589

Cash at end of period $ 44,976 $ 31,473

Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid (received) during the period for:
Interest $ 2,201 $ 1,117
Income taxes (5,001) 4,945

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Heartland Payment Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes To Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(unaudited)

1. Organization and Operations

Basis of Financial Statement Presentation� The accompanying consolidated financial statements include those of Heartland Payment Systems,
Inc. (the �Company,� �we,� �us,� or �our�) and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Heartland Payroll Company (�HPC�), Debitek, Inc. (�Debitek�) and Heartland
Acquisition LLC (�Network Services�), and its 70% owned subsidiary Collective POS Solutions Ltd. (�CPOS�). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. All intercompany
balances and transactions with the Company�s subsidiaries have been eliminated upon consolidation.

The accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements are unaudited. In the opinion of the Company�s management, the unaudited
condensed consolidated financial statements include all normal recurring adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of the Company�s financial
position at June 30, 2010, its results of operations, changes in stockholders� equity and cash flows for the six months ended June 30, 2010 and
2009. Results of operations reported for interim periods are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the year ending
December 31, 2010. These unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated
financial statements included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009. The December 31, 2009 condensed
consolidated balance sheet was derived from the audited 2009 consolidated financial statements.

Business Description� The Company�s principal business is to provide payment processing services related to bankcard transactions for
merchants throughout the United States and Canada. In addition, the Company provides certain other merchant services, including check
processing, the sale and rental of terminal equipment, gift and loyalty card processing, and the sale of terminal supplies. HPC provides payroll
and related tax filing services throughout the United States. Debitek provides prepaid card and stored-value card solutions throughout the United
States. The Company and Debitek also provide campus payment solutions throughout the United States. CPOS is a Canadian provider of
payment processing services and secure point-of-sale solutions.

Over 90% of the Company�s revenue is derived from processing and settling Visa and MasterCard bankcard transactions for its merchant
customers. Because the Company is not a �member bank� as defined by Visa and MasterCard, in order to process and settle these bankcard
transactions for its merchants, the Company has entered into sponsorship agreements with member banks. Visa and MasterCard rules restrict the
Company from performing funds settlement or accessing merchant settlement funds and require that these funds be in the possession of the
member bank until the merchant is funded. A sponsorship agreement permits the Company to route Visa and MasterCard bankcard transactions
under the member bank�s control and identification numbers to clear credit bankcard transactions through Visa and MasterCard. A sponsorship
agreement also enables the Company to settle funds between cardholders and merchants by delivering funding files to the member bank, which
in turn transfers settlement funds to the merchants� bank accounts. These restrictions place the settlement assets and obligations under the control
of the member bank.

The sponsorship agreements with the member banks require, among other things, that the Company abide by the by-laws and regulations of the
Visa and MasterCard networks, and certain of the bank sponsors require a certificate of deposit or a cash balance in a deposit account. If the
Company breaches a sponsorship agreement, the bank sponsor may terminate the agreement and, under the terms of the agreement, the
Company would have 180 days to identify an alternative bank sponsor. The Company is dependent on its bank sponsors, Visa and MasterCard
for notification of any compliance breaches. As of June 30, 2010, the Company has not been notified of any such issues by its bank sponsors,
Visa or MasterCard.

The Company is currently party to three bank sponsorship agreements. The Company entered into a sponsorship agreement with KeyBank,
National Association on April 1, 1999 and the agreement expires in March 2012. The acquisition of Network Services in May 2008 resulted in
the addition of World Financial Network National Bank as the sponsor bank for Network Services� large national merchant

5
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Heartland Payment Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes To Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements�(Continued)

(unaudited)

processing contracts. In August 2008, the Company entered into a sponsorship agreement with SunTrust Banks to replace World Financial
Network National Bank as its sponsor bank for Network Services� large national merchant processing portfolio and that portfolio was transferred
from World Financial Network National Bank to SunTrust Banks in February 2009. In August 2009, SunTrust Banks provided twelve months�
notice to the Company of its intent to withdraw its sponsorship of the Company�s large national merchants processing portfolio. In November
2009, the Company entered into a sponsorship agreement with The Bancorp Bank and transferred the sponsorship of its large national merchants
from SunTrust Banks to the Bancorp Bank in February 2010. The agreement with The Bancorp Bank expires in November 2014. In 2007, the
Company entered into a sponsor bank agreement with Heartland Bank (an unrelated third party), which is based in Saint Louis, Missouri. Our
agreement with Heartland Bank involves substantially the same terms as apply with KeyBank and it has renewed to September 2013.

Following is a breakout of the Company�s total Visa and MasterCard settled bankcard processing volume for the month of June 2010 by
percentage processed under its individual bank sponsorship agreements:

Sponsor Bank

% of June 2010
Bankcard Processing

Volume
KeyBank, National Association 70.8% 
Heartland Bank 14.4% 
The Bancorp Bank 14.8% 

Processing System Intrusion� On January 20, 2009, the Company publicly announced the discovery of a criminal breach of its payment systems
environment (the �Processing System Intrusion�). The Processing System Intrusion involved malicious software that appears to have been used to
collect in-transit, unencrypted payment card data while it was being processed by the Company during the transaction authorization process. The
Company believes the breach has been contained and did not extend beyond 2008. See Note 3, Processing System Intrusion for further detail and
related events.

Working Capital� Our working capital, defined as current assets less current liabilities, was negative by $41.0 million at June 30, 2010 primarily
due to the following: (i) our $42.3 million of Reserves for Processing System Intrusion, which remain unpaid at June 30, 2010, (ii) our
Revolving Credit Facility, which expires on September 4, 2012, with $75.0 million in borrowings classified as a current liability, and (iii) our
$28.0 million Bridge Loan, which is due on February 17, 2011. See �� Credit Facilities� for discussion of Revolving Credit Facility and the Bridge
Loan. Management believes that this working capital deficiency will not cause illiquidity and that we will be able to satisfy our obligations in the
normal course because: (i) while we expect the $75.0 million Revolving Credit Facility may be refinanced, we have the flexibility to defer
repayment until 2012, (ii) we expect the $28.0 million Bridge Loan to be refinanced, and (iii) the remaining $42.3 million Reserve for
Processing System Intrusion could be paid from available cash. We cannot offer any assurance that we will be able to refinance the Revolving
Credit Facility or the Bridge Loan or retain cash for remaining settlements related to the Processing System Intrusion. See Note 3 Processing
System Intrusion for information regarding the settlement and payment of a claim during the three and six months ended June 30, 2010.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates� The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting period. Estimates include, among other things, the accrued buyout liability, capitalized customer acquisition costs, goodwill, loss
reserves, certain accounts payable and accrued

6
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Heartland Payment Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes To Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements�(Continued)

(unaudited)

expenses and certain tax assets and liabilities as well as the related valuation allowances, if any. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents� At June 30, 2010, cash included approximately $29.8 million of processing-related cash in transit and compensating
balances, compared to approximately $25.5 million of processing-related cash in transit and compensating balances at December 31, 2009.

Receivables� Receivables are stated net of allowance for doubtful accounts. The Company estimates its allowance based on experience with its
merchants, customers, and sales force and its judgment as to the likelihood of their ultimate payment. The Company also considers collection
experience and makes estimates regarding collectability based on trends in aging. Historically, the Company has not experienced significant
charge offs for its merchant receivables.

The Company�s primary receivables are from its bankcard processing merchants. These receivables result from the Company�s practice of
advancing interchange fees to most of its small and midsized merchants (referred to as Small and Midsized Enterprises, or �SME�) during the
month and collecting those fees at the beginning of the following month, as well as from transaction fees the Company charges its merchants for
processing transactions. The Company does not advance interchange fees to its Network Services merchants.

Generally, the Company uses cash available for investment to fund these advances to SME merchants; when available cash has been expended,
the Company directs its sponsor banks to make these advances, thus generating a payable to the sponsor banks. We pay our sponsor banks the
prime rate on these payables. At June 30, 2010, the Company used $57.2 million of its available cash to fund merchant advances and at
December 31, 2009, the Company used $7.0 million of its cash to fund merchant advances. The amount due to sponsor banks for funding
advances was $36.4 million at June 30, 2010 and $73.2 million at December 31, 2009. The payable to sponsor banks is repaid at the beginning
of the following month out of the fees the Company collects from its merchants. Receivables from merchants also include receivables from the
sale of point of sale terminal equipment and check processing terminals. Unlike the SME merchants, Network Services� customers are large
national accounts which are invoiced monthly, on payment terms that are typical for large national accounts.

Receivables also include amounts resulting from the pre-funding of Discover and American Express transactions to our merchants and are due
from the related bankcard networks. These amounts are recovered over the following two business days from the date of processing the
transaction.

Receivables also include amounts resulting from the sale, installation, training and repair of payment system hardware and software for prepaid
card and stored-value card payment systems and campus payment solutions. These receivables are mostly invoiced on terms of 30 days net from
date of invoicing and are typically funded from working capital.

Receivables also include amounts advanced to employees, primarily the Company�s sales force, to cover certain expenses. These receivables are
recovered from sales and residual commissions earned by the sales force.

Investments and Funds Held for Payroll Customers� Investments, including those carried on the consolidated balance sheet as Funds Held for
Payroll Customers, consist primarily of fixed income bond funds, corporate debt and equity securities, and certificates of deposit. Funds Held for
Payroll Customers also include overnight bank deposits. The majority of investments carried in Funds Held for Payroll Customers are
available-for-sale and recorded at fair value based on quoted market prices. Certificates of deposit are classified as held to maturity and recorded
at cost. In the event of a sale, cost is determined on a specific identification basis. At June 30, 2010, Funds Held for Payroll Customers included
cash and cash equivalents of $24.6 million and investments available for sale of $1.5 million.

Capitalized Customer Acquisition Costs, net� Capitalized customer acquisition costs consist of (1) up-front signing bonus payments made to
Relationship Managers and sales managers (the Company�s
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Heartland Payment Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes To Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements�(Continued)

(unaudited)

sales force) for the establishment of new merchant relationships, and (2) a deferred acquisition cost representing the estimated cost of buying out
the commissions of vested sales employees. Capitalized customer acquisition costs represent incremental, direct customer acquisition costs that
are recoverable through gross margins associated with merchant contracts. The capitalized customer acquisition costs are amortized using a
method which approximates a proportional revenue approach over the initial three-year term of the merchant contract.

The up-front signing bonus is based on the estimated gross margin for the first year of the SME merchant contract. The signing bonus, amount
capitalized, and related amortization are adjusted after one year to reflect the actual gross margin generated by the merchant contract during that
year. The deferred customer acquisition cost asset is accrued over the first year of merchant processing, consistent with the build-up in the
accrued buyout liability, as described below.

Management evaluates the capitalized customer acquisition costs for impairment at each balance sheet date by comparing, on a pooled basis by
vintage month of origination, the expected future net cash flows from underlying SME merchant relationships to the carrying amount of the
capitalized customer acquisition costs. If the estimated future net cash flows are lower than the recorded carrying amount, indicating an
impairment of the value of the capitalized customer acquisition costs, the impairment loss will be charged to operations. The Company believes
that no impairment has occurred as of June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009.

Merchant Deposits and Loss Reserves� The Company maintains merchant deposits to offset potential liabilities from merchant chargeback
processing, which is discussed below, as well as deposits representing debit processing and check processing funds in transit. Previously, the
debit processing funds in transit were netted against receivables. Disputes between a cardholder and a merchant periodically arise due to the
cardholder�s dissatisfaction with merchandise quality or the merchant�s service, and the disputes may not always be resolved in the merchant�s
favor. In some of these cases, the transaction is �charged back� to the merchant and the purchase price is refunded to the cardholder by the credit
card-issuing institution. If the merchant is unable to fund the refund, the Company is liable for the full amount of the transaction. The Company�s
obligation to stand ready to perform is minimal. The Company maintains a deposit or the pledge of a letter of credit from certain merchants as an
offset to potential contingent liabilities that are the responsibility of such merchants. The Company evaluates its ultimate risk and records an
estimate of potential loss for chargebacks related to merchant fraud based upon an assessment of actual historical fraud loss rates compared to
recent bankcard processing volume levels. The Company believes that the liability recorded as loss reserves approximates fair value.

Accrued Buyout Liability� The Company�s historic focus has been on SME merchants, and it has a sales compensation arrangement in this market
that has been essentially unchanged since its inception. Under this approach, Relationship Managers and sales managers are paid residual
commissions based on the gross margin generated by monthly SME merchant processing activity. The Company has the right, but is not
obligated, to buy out some or all of these commissions, and intends to do so periodically. Such purchases of the commissions are at a fixed
multiple of the last twelve months� commissions. Because of the Company�s intent and ability to execute purchases of the residual commissions,
and the mutual understanding between the Company and the Relationship Managers and sales managers, the Company has accounted for this
deferred compensation arrangement pursuant to the substantive nature of the plan. The Company therefore records the amount that it would have
to pay (the �settlement cost�) to buy out non-servicing related commissions in their entirety from vested Relationship Managers and sales
managers, and an accrual, based on their progress towards vesting, for those unvested Relationship Managers and sales managers who are
expected to vest in the future. As noted above, as the liability increases over the first year of a SME merchant contract, the Company also
records a related deferred acquisition cost asset for currently vested Relationship Managers and sales managers. The accrued buyout liability
associated with unvested Relationship Managers and sales managers is not included in the deferred acquisition cost asset since future services
are required in order to vest. Subsequent changes in the settlement cost, due to account attrition, same-store sales growth and changes in gross
margin are included in the same income statement caption as customer acquisition cost amortization expense.
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The accrued buyout liability is based on the SME merchants under contract at the balance sheet date, the gross margin generated by those
merchants over the prior twelve months, and the contractual buyout multiple. The liability related to a new SME merchant is therefore zero when
the merchant is installed, and increases over the twelve months following the installation date. The same procedure is applied to unvested
commissions over the expected vesting period, but is further adjusted to reflect the Company�s experience that 31% of unvested Relationship
Managers and sales managers become vested.

The classification of the accrued buyout liability between current and non-current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets is based upon the
Company�s estimate of the amount of the accrued buyout liability that it reasonably expects to pay over the next twelve months. This estimate is
developed by calculating the cumulative annual average percentage that total historical buyout payments represent of the accrued buyout
liability. That percentage is applied to the period-end accrued buyout liability to determine the current portion.

Revenue� Revenues are mainly comprised of gross processing revenue, payroll processing revenue and equipment-related income. Gross
processing revenue primarily consists of discount fees and per-transaction and periodic (primarily monthly) fees from the processing of Visa and
MasterCard bankcard transactions for merchants. The Company passes through to its customers any changes in interchange or network fees.
Gross processing revenue also includes American Express and Discover fees, customer service fees, fees for processing chargebacks,
termination fees on terminated contracts, check processing fees, gift and loyalty card fees and other miscellaneous revenue. Payroll processing
revenue includes periodic and annual fees charged by HPC for payroll processing services, and interest earned from investing tax impound funds
held for our customers. Revenue is recorded as bankcard and other processing transactions are processed or payroll services are performed.

Equipment-related income includes revenues from the sale, rental and deployment of bankcard and check processing terminals, from the sale of
hardware, software and associated services for prepaid card and stored-value card payment systems, and campus payment solutions. Revenues
are recorded at the time of shipment, or the provision of service.

Loss Contingencies and Legal Expenses� The Company records a liability for loss contingencies when the liability is probable and reasonably
estimable. Legal fees associated with loss contingencies are recorded when the legal fees are incurred.

The Company records recoveries from its insurance providers when cash is received from the provider.

Income Taxes� The Company accounts for income taxes by recognizing deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax
consequences of events that have been included in the financial statements or tax returns. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities
are determined based on the difference between the financial statements and the tax basis of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates.

The provision for/(benefit from) income taxes for the three and six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 and the resulting effective tax rates
were as follows:

Three Months Ended
June  30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2010 2009 2010 2009
(In thousands)

Provision for/(benefit from) income taxes $ 4,064 $ (1,669) $ 12,658 $ (3,170) 
Effective tax rate 39.69% 39.09% 38.27% 38.43% 

Current Deferred Tax Assets, Net, decreased from $42.8 million at December 31, 2009 to $22.7 million at June 30, 2010. The changes in
deferred tax assets primarily resulted from the payment of the settlement with Visa and recoveries from our insurance providers (see Note 3
Processing System Intrusion for more detail).
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The Company maintains valuation allowances when it is more likely than not that all or a portion of a deferred tax asset will not be realized. In
determining whether a valuation allowance is warranted, the Company evaluates factors such as prior earnings history, expected future earnings,
carry back and carry forward periods and tax strategies that could potentially enhance the likelihood of the realization of a deferred tax asset.

The Company regularly evaluates its tax positions for additional unrecognized tax benefits and associated interest and penalties, if applicable.
There are many factors that are considered when evaluating these tax positions including: interpretation of tax laws, recent tax litigation on a
position, past audit or examination history, and subjective estimates and assumptions, which have been deemed reasonable by management.
However, if management�s estimates are not representative of actual outcomes, the Company�s results could be materially impacted. The
Company does not expect any material changes to unrecognized tax benefits in the next 12 months. At June 30, 2010, the reserve for
unrecognized tax benefits related to uncertain tax positions was $1.4 million, of which $0.9 million would, if recognized, impact the effective tax
rate.

Stock�Based Compensation� In the second quarter of 2009, the Company�s Board of Directors approved grants of 930,000 stock options subject
to multiple vesting conditions. Under these stock options, the employee must provide continuous service over four years and a market price
condition must be satisfied within those four years. These stock options have a five-year term and could vest in equal amounts in 2010, 2011,
2012 and 2013 only if during the four-year service period, the price of the Company�s common stock as reported by the New York Stock
Exchange exceeds two or three times the exercise price for 30 consecutive trading days. The grant date fair values of these multiple vesting
condition options are recognized as compensation expense over their four-year service periods.

Also in 2009, the Company�s Board of Directors approved grants of 362,600 Restricted Share Units. These Restricted Share Units are nonvested
share awards which will vest over a four-year service period as employees perform service. The closing price of the Company�s common stock
on the grant date equals the grant date fair value of these nonvested share awards and will be recognized as compensation expense over their
four-year service periods.

Diluted earnings per share for the three and six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 were computed based on the weighted average
outstanding common shares plus equivalent shares assuming exercise of stock options, where dilutive. Due to the net loss in 2009, calculating
Diluted Earnings Per Share using diluted weighted average shares would be anti-dilutive for 2009 periods. Therefore, weighted average common
stock outstanding was used to calculate Diluted Earnings Per Share for 2009.

Foreign Currency� The Canadian dollar is the functional currency of CPOS, which operates in Canada. CPOS� revenues and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates prevailing during the period. The foreign currency assets and liabilities of CPOS are translated at the
period-end rate of exchange. The resulting translation adjustment is recorded as a component of other comprehensive income and is included in
stockholders� equity. At June 30, 2010 and 2009, the cumulative foreign currency translation reflected a loss of $0.8 million and $1.7 million,
respectively. The Company intends to indefinitely reinvest undistributed earnings of CPOS and has not tax effected the cumulative foreign
currency translation gain or loss. Determination of the amount of unrecognized deferred tax liability related to indefinitely reinvested profits is
not material.

Noncontrolling Interests� Noncontrolling interests represent noncontrolling minority stockholders� share of the equity and after-tax net income or
loss of consolidated subsidiaries. Noncontrolling minority stockholders� share of after-tax net income or loss of consolidated subsidiaries is
included in �Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests� in the Consolidated Income Statement. The minority stockholders� interests
included in �Noncontrolling interests� in the June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009 Consolidated Balance Sheets were $261,000 and $214,000,
respectively, and reflect the original investments by these minority shareholders in the consolidated subsidiaries, along with their proportionate
share of the earnings or losses of the subsidiaries.
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Subsequent Events� The Company evaluated subsequent events with respect to the Consolidated Financial Statements as of and for the six
months ended June 30, 2010.

New Accounting Pronouncements� In October 2009, the FASB issued an accounting standard update on multiple deliverable revenue
arrangements to establish the accounting for certain revenue arrangements in which the vendor or service provider will perform multiple revenue
generating activities (e.g., contracts that require an up-front fee along with fees that recur over the life of the arrangement). Specifically, the
update addresses how to separate deliverables and how to measure and allocate arrangement consideration to one or more units of accounting.
This update will be effective for revenue arrangements that are entered into or materially altered after January 1, 2011. The Company is
currently evaluating the impact the adoption of this guidance will have on its financial statements.

3. Processing System Intrusion

On January 20, 2009, we publicly announced the discovery of a criminal breach of our payment systems environment (the �Processing System
Intrusion�). The Processing System Intrusion involved malicious software that appears to have been used to collect in-transit, unencrypted
payment card data while it was being processed by us during the transaction authorization process. Such data is not required to be encrypted
while in transit under current payment card industry guidelines. We had received confirmation of our compliance with the Payment Card
Industry Data Security Standard (�PCI-DSS�) from a third-party assessor each year since the standard was announced, including in April 2008,
before the discovery of the Processing System Intrusion. Subsequent to the discovery of the Processing System Intrusion, we were advised by
Visa that based on Visa�s investigation of the Processing System Intrusion, Visa had removed us from Visa�s published list of PCI-DSS compliant
service providers. We were similarly advised by MasterCard that, based on MasterCard�s investigation of the Processing System Intrusion,
MasterCard believed we were in violation of the MasterCard Standards and, based on that belief, MasterCard removed us from MasterCard�s
published list of Compliant Service Providers. In April 2009, we were re-certified as PCI-DSS compliant and the assessor�s report attesting to
such re-certification has been reviewed and approved by Visa. As such, we were returned to MasterCard�s published list of Compliant Service
Providers and Visa�s Global List of PCI-DSS Validated Service Providers. Card data that could have been exposed by the Processing System
Intrusion included card numbers, expiration dates, and certain other information from the magnetic stripe on the back of the payment card
(including, for a small percentage of cards, the cardholder�s name). However, the cardholder information that we process does not include
addresses or Social Security numbers. Also, we believe that no unencrypted PIN data was captured and that the breach has been contained and
did not extend beyond 2008.

Since its announcement of the Processing System Intrusion on January 20, 2009 and through June 30, 2010, the Company has expensed a total
of $144.2 million, before reducing those charges by $30.7 million of total insurance recoveries. The majority of the total charges, or
approximately $114.7 million, related to consummated settlements of claims, settlements agreed upon, or settlements deemed likely to be agreed
upon in the near term. Approximately $29.5 million of the total charges were for legal fees and costs we incurred for investigations, defending
various claims and actions, remedial actions and crisis management services.

During the six months ended June 30, 2010, the Company recovered from its insurance providers approximately $26.8 million of the costs it
incurred for the Processing System Intrusion and expensed approximately $11.3 million for accruals, legal fees and costs it incurred for
defending various claims and actions, resulting in a net recovery of $15.5 million, or $0.24 per share. For the three months ended June 30, 2010,
the Company expensed a total of $4.9 million, or about $0.07 per share, respectively, associated with the Processing System Intrusion.

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2009, the Company expensed a total of $19.4 million and $32.0 million, respectively, or about
$0.32 and $0.53 per share, respectively, for accruals, legal fees and costs it incurred for defending various claims and actions associated with the
Processing System Intrusion.
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At June 30, 2010, the Company carried a $42.3 million Reserve for Processing System Intrusion on its Consolidated Balance Sheet. The
majority of this Reserve related to:

(i) the settlement agreement we entered into with MasterCard on May 19, 2010, which is expected to be consummated late in the third
quarter of 2010, and

(ii) a settlement offer deemed likely to be agreed upon in the near term with a claimant.
Notwithstanding its belief that it has strong defenses against the claim that is the subject of the settlement offer described in (ii) above, the
Company decided to make the settlement offer and engage in settlement discussions in attempts to avoid the costs and uncertainty of litigation.
The Company is prepared to vigorously defend itself against any unsettled claims relating to the Processing System Intrusion that have been
asserted against it and its sponsor banks to date. The Company feels it has strong defenses to all the claims that have been asserted against it and
its sponsor banks relating to the Processing System Intrusion.

Additional costs we expect to incur for legal fees and settlements related to the Processing System Intrusion will be recognized as incurred. Such
costs could be material and could adversely impact our results of operations, financial condition and cash flow.

On December 17, 2009, we entered into a settlement agreement and release with American Express to resolve potential claims and other
disputes among us and American Express (and its issuers) with respect to the Processing System Intrusion, and subsequently we paid
approximately $3.5 million in full and final satisfaction of any and all claims of American Express and its issuers arising from or relating to the
Processing System Intrusion. Such settlement agreement and release contains mutual releases by and between us and American Express (on
behalf of itself and its issuers) relating to the Processing System Intrusion.

On January 7, 2010, the Company, Heartland Bank, KeyBank National Association (�KeyBank,� and, together with Heartland Bank, the �Sponsor
Banks�), and Visa U.S.A. Inc., Visa International Service Association and Visa Inc. (collectively, �Visa�) entered into a settlement agreement (the
�Settlement Agreement�) to resolve potential claims and other disputes among the Company, the Sponsor Banks and Visa with respect to the
potential rights and claims of Visa and certain issuers of Visa-branded credit and debit cards related to the Processing System Intrusion. After
including a $780,000 credit for fines previously collected by Visa during 2009, the amount paid by the Company under the Settlement
Agreement was $59.3 million. The costs of this settlement were included in the Company�s Provision for Processing System Intrusion on its
Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2009 and in its Reserve for Processing System Intrusion on its
Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2009.

On February 18, 2010, the Company entered into a bridge loan agreement (the �Bridge Loan Agreement�) with KeyBank, as administrative agent,
and KeyBank and Heartland Bank as bridge lenders. On that date, KeyBank made a bridge loan to the Company in the amount of $20.0 million
and Heartland Bank made a bridge loan in the amount of $8.0 million (collectively, the �Bridge Loan�), which are the maximum amounts that the
Company may borrow under the Bridge Loan Agreement. The Company must repay the Bridge Loan by February 17, 2011. See Note 10 for
additional terms of the Bridge Loan.

On February 18, 2010, the Company also entered into a Commitment Increase Agreement pursuant to the Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement dated as of May 30, 2008 (the �Commitment Increase Agreement�) whereby KeyBank, as one of the lenders under the Amended and
Restated Credit Agreement, agreed to increase its revolving credit commitment to the company under the Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement by $25.0 million (the �Increased Credit Commitment�). The terms of the Increased Credit Commitment are similar to the terms of the
Revolving Credit Facility (See Note 10).
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The proceeds of the Bridge Loan and the Increased Credit Commitment, together with a portion of the Company�s cash reserves, were used to
fund the settlement with Visa. The Settlement Agreement was consummated on February 18, 2010, with a payment of $58.6 million.
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On May 19, 2010, the Company entered into a settlement agreement with MasterCard Worldwide (the �MasterCard Settlement Agreement�) to
resolve potential claims and other disputes among the Company, the Sponsor Banks and MasterCard related to the Processing System Intrusion.
Under the MasterCard Settlement Agreement, alternative recovery offers totaling $41.4 million were made to eligible MasterCard issuers with
respect to losses alleged to have been incurred by them as a result of the Processing System Intrusion. The $41.4 million includes a $6.6 million
credit for fines previously collected by MasterCard during 2009, so the maximum further amount to be paid by the Company under the
MasterCard Settlement Agreement is $34.8 million. Payment of the final settlement amount is expected late in the third quarter of 2010,
although consummation of the settlement is subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions described in the Company�s Current Report on Form
8-K filed on May 19, 2010 and set forth in the MasterCard Settlement Agreement, which is filed as Exhibit 10.1 to such Form 8-K. The costs of
this settlement were included in the Company�s Provision for Processing System Intrusion on its Consolidated Statement of Operations for the
year ended December 31, 2009 and in its Reserve for Processing System Intrusion on its Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2010.

4. Receivables

A summary of receivables by major class was as follows at June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009:

June 30,
2010

December 31,
2009

(In thousands)
Accounts receivable from merchants $ 150,879 $ 138,761
Receivables from bankcard networks 13,234 7,790
Accounts receivable from others 4,238 3,311

168,351 149,862
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (984) (459) 

Total receivables, net $ 167,367 $ 149,403

Included in accounts receivable from others are $2.0 million and $1.8 million which are due from employees at June 30, 2010 and December 31,
2009, respectively. Accounts receivables related to bankcard networks reflect amounts we have pre-funded to merchants for their Discover and
American Express bankcard transactions.

A summary of the activity in the allowance for doubtful accounts for the three and six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 was as follows:

Three Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

    2010        2009        2010        2009    
(In thousands)

Beginning balance $ 547 $ 463 $ 459 $ 499
Additions to allowance 427 552 584 548
Recoveries (Charge-offs) 10 (455) (59) (487) 

Ending balance $ 984 $ 560 $ 984 $ 560
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5. Funds Held for Payroll Customers and Investments

A summary of Funds Held for Payroll Customers and Investments, including the cost, gross unrealized gains (losses) and estimated fair value for
investments held to maturity and investments available-for-sale by major security type and class of security were as follows at June 30, 2010 and
December 31, 2009:
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Cost

Gross
Unrealized
Gains

Gross
Unrealized
Losses

Estimated
Fair Value

(In thousands)
June 30, 2010
Funds Held for Payroll Customers:
Fixed income bond fund $ 968 $ 166 $ �  $ 1,134
Corporate debt securities 273 11 �  284
Corporate equity securities 29 7 �  36

Total investments available-for-sale 1,270 184 �  1,454
Cash held for payroll customers 24,611 �  �  24,611

Total Funds Held for Payroll Customers $ 25,881 $ 184 $ �  $ 26,065

Investments:
Investments held to maturity � Certificates of deposit $ 1,382 $ �  $ �  $ 1,382

Total investments $ 1,382 $ �  $ �  $ 1,382

(a) Certificates of deposits have remaining terms ranging from 2 months to 12 months.

Cost

Gross
Unrealized
Gains

Gross
Unrealized
Losses

Estimated
Fair Value

(In thousands)
December 31, 2009
Funds Held for Payroll Customers:
Fixed income bond fund $ 968 $ 113 $ �  $ 1,081
Corporate debt securities 273 10 �  283
Corporate equity securities 29 �  �  29

Total investments available-for-sale 1,270 123 �  1,393
Cash held for payroll customers 28,274 �  �  28,274

Total Funds Held for Payroll Customers $ 29,544 $ 123 $ �  $ 29,667

Investments:
Investments held to maturity � Certificates of deposit $ 1,450 $ �  $ �  $ 1,450

Total investments $ 1,450 $ �  $ �  $ 1,450

The Company�s framework for measuring fair value provides a three-level hierarchy, which prioritizes the factors (inputs) used to calculate the
fair value of assets and liabilities as follows:
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� Level 1. Level 1 inputs are unadjusted quoted prices, such as a New York Stock Exchange closing price, in active markets for
identical assets. Level 1 is the highest priority in the hierarchy.

� Level 2. Level 2 inputs may include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, as well as other significant
inputs that are observable at commonly quoted intervals, such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and yield curves.

� Level 3. Level 3 are unobservable inputs which are based on company assumptions due to little, if any, observable market
information. Level 3 is the lowest priority in the hierarchy.

At June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, all investments in available-for-sale securities held by the Company were measured using Level 1
inputs.

During the six months ended June 30, 2010, the Company did not experience any other-than-temporary losses on its investments. During the
twelve months ended December 31, 2009, the Company recognized $31,000 of other-than-temporary impairment losses on its corporate debt
securities.
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The maturity schedule of all available-for-sale, debt securities and held to maturity investments along with amortized cost and estimated fair
value as of June 30, 2010 is as follows:

Amortized
Cost

Estimated
Fair Value

(In thousands)
Due in one year or less $ 2,350 $ 2,516
Due after one year through five years 210 218
Due after five years 63 66

$ 2,623 $ 2,800

6. Capitalized Customer Acquisition Costs, Net

A summary of net capitalized customer acquisition costs as of June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009 was as follows:

June 30,
2010

December 31,
2009

(In thousands)
Capitalized signing bonuses $ 109,027 $ 119,560
Less accumulated amortization (60,841) (63,299) 

48,186 56,261

Capitalized customer deferred acquisition costs 39,312 39,230
Less accumulated amortization (23,943) (23,453) 

15,369 15,777

Capitalized customer acquisition costs, net $ 63,555 $ 72,038

A summary of the activity in capitalized customer acquisition costs, net for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 was
as follows:

Three Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2010 2009 2010 2009
(In thousands)

Balance at beginning of period $ 66,771 $ 76,551 $ 72,038 $ 77,737
Plus additions to:
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Capitalized signing bonuses, net 6,432 8,758 11,403 17,765
Capitalized customer deferred acquisition
costs 3,916 4,259 7,726 8,195

10,348 13,017 19,129 25,960

Less amortization expense on:
Capitalized signing bonuses, net (9,505) (10,335) (19,478) (20,614) 
Capitalized customer deferred acquisition
costs (4,059) (3,987) (8,134) (7,837) 

(13,564) (14,322) (27,612) (28,451) 

Balance at end of period $ 63,555 $ 75,246 $ 63,555 $ 75,246

Net signing bonus adjustments from estimated amounts to actual were $(0.9) million and $(0.2) million, respectively, for the three months ended
June 30, 2010 and 2009, and $(1.6) million and $(0.2) million, respectively, for the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009. Net signing bonus
adjustments are netted against additions in the table above. Positive signing bonus adjustments occur when the actual gross margin generated by
the merchant contract during the first year exceeds the estimated gross margin for that year, resulting in the underpayment of the up-front
signing bonus and would be paid to the relevant salesperson. Negative signing bonus adjustments result from the prior overpayment of signing
bonuses and would be recovered from the relevant salesperson.

Fully amortized signing bonuses of $11.2 million and $9.1 million respectively, were written off during the three month periods ended June 30,
2010 and 2009, and $21.9 million and $16.2 million
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respectively, were written off during the six month periods ended June 30, 2010 and 2009. In addition, fully amortized customer deferred
acquisition costs of $4.2 million and $3.8 million, respectively, were written off during the three month ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, and $7.6
million and $7.4 million, respectively, were written off during the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009.

The Company believes that no impairment of capitalized customer acquisition costs has occurred as of June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009.

7. Intangible Assets and Goodwill

Intangible Assets � Intangible assets consisted of the following as of June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009:

June 30, 2010
Gross
Assets

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Asset Amortization Life and Method

(In thousands)
Finite Lived Assets:
Customer relationships $ 28,653 $ 3,076 $ 25,577 3 to 18 years�proportional cash flow
Merchant Portfolio (a) 3,237 803 2,434 7 years � proportional cash flow
Software 9,154 5,743 3,411 3 to 5 years�straight line
Non-compete agreements 994 629 365 3 to 5 years�straight line
Other 494 315 179 2 to 4 years�straight line

$ 42,532 $ 10,566 $ 31,966

(a) On July 31, 2009, the Company purchased for $3.2 million the existing Discover merchant portfolio, which the Company was already
processing. This purchase related to the Company�s 2008 agreement with DFS Services, LLC, which enables the Company to offer
bankcard merchants a streamlined process that enables them to accept Discover Network cards on the Company�s processing platform. This
asset is being amortized for the next 73 months in proportion to estimated future cash flows.

December 31, 2009
Gross
Assets

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Asset Amortization Life and Method

(In thousands)
Finite Lived Assets:
Customer relationships $ 28,663 $ 2,471 $ 26,192 3 to 18 years�proportional cash flow
Merchant Portfolio (a) 3,237 386 2,851 7 years � proportional cash flow
Software 9,154 4,330 4,824 3 to 5 years�straight line
Non-compete agreements 994 490 504 3 to 5 years�straight line
Other 512 246 266 2 to 4 years�straight line

$ 42,560 $ 7,923 $ 34,637

Edgar Filing: HEARTLAND PAYMENT SYSTEMS INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 29



Amortization expense related to the intangible assets was $1.3 million and $1.2 million, respectively, for the three months ended June 30, 2010
and 2009 and $2.7 million and $2.3 million, respectively, for the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009. The estimated remaining
amortization expense related to intangible assets is as follows:

For the Twelve Months Ending June 30, (In thousands)
2011 $ 4,758
2012 2,389
2013 2,520
2014 2,271
2015 2,190
Thereafter 17,838

$ 31,966
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Goodwill � The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 were as follows:

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2010 2009
(In thousands)

Beginning balance $ 60,962 $ 58,456
Effects of foreign currency translation (121) 401
Other (a) 651 193

Ending balance $ 61,492 $ 59,050

(a) Reflects estimated earnout payments due to the former shareholders of Chockstone and adjustments to allocations of purchase price.
8. Merchant Deposits and Loss Reserves

The majority of merchant deposits held by the Company include funds in transit associated with pin debit processing and check processing in
addition to merchant funds held that are associated with bankcard processing. As of June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, the Company held
merchant deposits totaling $28.4 million and $25.9 million, respectively, and letters of credit totaling $388,000 and $463,000, respectively.

The Company�s merchants have the liability for any charges properly reversed by the cardholder through a mechanism known as a chargeback. If
the merchant is unable to pay this amount, the Company will be liable to the card brand networks for the reversed charges. The Company has
determined that the fair value of its obligation to stand ready to perform is minimal. The Company requires personal guarantees, merchant
deposits and letters of credit from certain merchants to minimize its obligation.

The card brand networks generally allow chargebacks up to four months after the later of the date the transaction is processed or the delivery of
the product or service to the cardholder. As the majority of the Company�s SME merchant transactions involve the delivery of the product or
service at the time of the transaction, a reasonable basis for determining an estimate of the Company�s exposure to chargebacks is the last four
months� processing volume on the SME portfolio, which was $21.8 billion and $19.6 billion for the four months ended June 30, 2010 and
December 31, 2009, respectively. However, for the four months ended June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, the Company was presented with
$10.9 million and $11.1 million, respectively, in chargebacks by issuing banks. In the six months ended June 30, 2010 and June 30, 2009, the
Company incurred merchant credit losses of $5.6 million and $3.0 million, respectively, on total SME bankcard dollar volumes processed of
$31.0 billion and $28.5 billion, respectively. These credit losses are included in processing and servicing costs in the Company�s consolidated
statements of income.

The loss recorded by the Company for chargebacks associated with any individual merchant is typically small, due both to the relatively small
size and the processing profile of the Company�s SME merchants. However, from time to time the Company will encounter instances of
merchant fraud, and the resulting chargeback losses may be considerably more significant to the Company. The Company has established a
contingent reserve for estimated currently existing credit and fraud losses on its consolidated balance sheets, amounting to $1,467,000 on
June 30, 2010 and $1,336,000 on December 31, 2009. This reserve is determined by performing an analysis of the Company�s historical loss
experience applied to current processing volume and exposures.
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A summary of the activity in the loss reserve for the three month periods ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 was as follows:

Three Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2010 2009 2010 2009
(In thousands)

Beginning balance $ 1,357 $ 1,122 $ 1,336 $ 1,097
Additions to reserve 2,662 1,674 5,962 3,203
Charges against reserve (a) (2,552) (1,639) (5,831) (3,143) 

Ending balance $ 1,467 $ 1,157 $ 1,467 $ 1,157

(a) Included in these amounts are payroll segment losses of $69,000 and $23,000, respectively, for the three months ended June 30, 2010 and
2009, and $200,000 and $101,000, respectively, for the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009.

Chargebacks originating from large national merchant bankcard processing are processed and carried by Fifth Third Processing Solutions, which
is the Company�s third-party outsourced processor for settling large national merchant accounts.

9. Accrued Buyout Liability

A summary of the accrued buyout liability was as follows as of June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009:

June 30,
2010

December 31,
2009

(In thousands)
Vested Relationship Managers and sales managers $ 43,852 $ 41,157
Unvested Relationship Managers and sales managers 1,796 1,729

45,648 42,886
Less current portion (8,582) (9,306) 

Long-term portion of accrued buyout liability $ 37,066 $ 33,580

In calculating the accrued buyout liability for unvested Relationship Managers and sales managers, the Company has assumed that 31% of the
unvested Relationship Managers and sales managers will vest in the future, which represents the Company�s historical vesting rate. A 5%
increase to 36% in the expected vesting rate would have increased the accrued buyout liability for unvested Relationship Managers and sales
managers by $0.3 million at June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009.

A summary of the activity in the accrued buyout liability for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 was as follows:
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Three Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2010 2009 2010 2009
(In thousands)

Beginning balance $ 44,110 $ 40,709 $ 42,886 $ 41,040
Increase in settlement obligation, net 3,172 2,694 6,299 5,076
Buyouts (1,634) (2,191) (3,537) (4,904) 

Ending balance $ 45,648 $ 41,212 $ 45,648 $ 41,212

The increase in settlement obligation is due to new SME merchant account signings, as adjusted for changes in same-store sales growth, changes
in gross margin for existing merchant relationships, and as reduced by the impact of SME merchant attrition.
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10. Credit Facilities
Amended and Restated Credit Agreement. On May 30, 2008, the Company entered into an amended and restated credit agreement (the
�Amended and Restated Credit Agreement�) with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, and certain lenders who may become a
party to the Credit Agreement from time to time. The Amended and Restated Credit Agreement amended and restated in its entirety the previous
credit agreement entered into on September 5, 2007 between the same parties that are parties to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement.
On August 3, 2009, the Company and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. amended the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement to exclude a certain
amount of charges related to the Processing System Intrusion that may be incurred or accrued by the Company in determining the Company�s
compliance with the financial covenants in the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, provide the lenders with a security interest in the
assets of the Company, and increase the interest margin charged on borrowings.

The Amended and Restated Credit Agreement provides for a revolving credit facility in the aggregate amount of up to $50 million (the
�Revolving Credit Facility�), of which up to $5 million may be used for the issuance of letters of credit and up to $5 million is available for swing
line loans. Upon the prior approval of the administrative agent, the Company was able to increase the total commitments by $25 million for a
total commitment under the Revolving Credit Facility of $75 million. On February 18, 2010, the Company entered into a Commitment Increase
Agreement (the �Commitment Increase Agreement�) with KeyBank as one of the lenders under the Revolving Credit Facility to increase the total
commitment under the Revolving Credit Facility by $25 million (the �Increased Credit Commitment�). The terms of the Increased Credit
Commitment are identical to the terms of the Revolving Credit Facility. The Revolving Credit Facility is available to the Company on a
revolving basis until September 4, 2012.

The Amended and Restated Credit Agreement also provides for a term credit facility in the aggregate amount of up to $25 million (the �Term
Credit Facility�). The Term Credit Facility requires amortizing payments in the amount of $2,083,333 on the last business day of each fiscal
quarter commencing March 31, 2009. All principal and interest not previously paid on the Term Credit Facility will mature and be due and
payable on December 31, 2011. Amounts borrowed and repaid under the Term Credit Facility may not be re-borrowed. Principal payments due
under the Term Credit Facility as of June 30, 2010 were as follows:

Twelve Months Ended June 30, (In thousands)
2011 $ 8,333
2012 4,167

$ 12,500

The Amended and Restated Credit Agreement contains covenants, which include the maintenance of certain leverage and fixed charge coverage
ratios, limitations on the Company�s indebtedness, liens on its properties and assets, investments in, and loans to, other business units, the
Company�s ability to enter into business combinations and asset sales, and certain other financial and non-financial covenants. The Company was
in compliance with these covenants as of June 30, 2010.

Under the terms of the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, the Company may borrow, at its option, at interest rates equal to one, two,
three or nine month adjusted LIBOR rates or equal to the greater of prime and the federal funds rate plus 0.50%, in each case plus a margin
determined by the Company�s current leverage ratio.

At December 31, 2009, there was $50.0 million outstanding under the Revolving Credit Facility and $16.7 million outstanding under the Term
Credit Facility. At June 30, 2010, there was $75.0 million outstanding under the Revolving Credit Facility and $12.5 million outstanding under
the Term Credit Facility. The weighted average interest rate at June 30, 2010 was 3.16%. Total fees and direct costs paid for the Amended and
Restated Credit Agreement through June 30, 2010 were $514,000. These costs are being amortized to interest expense over the life of the
Amended and Restated Credit Agreement.
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Bridge Loan Agreement and Increased Credit Commitment. A condition of the January 7, 2010 Settlement Agreement with Visa was for the
Company to obtain a loan of at least $53.0 million from KeyBank and Heartland Bank, the proceeds of which were to be used by the Company
to fund the settlement amount. See Note 3 Processing System Intrusion for more detail.

On February 18, 2010, the Company entered into a bridge loan agreement (the �Bridge Loan Agreement�) with KeyBank, as administrative agent,
and KeyBank and Heartland Bank as bridge lenders. On that date, KeyBank made a bridge loan to the Company in the amount of $20.0 million
and Heartland Bank made a bridge loan in the amount of $8.0 million (collectively, the �Bridge Loan�), which represents the maximum amounts
that the Company may borrow under the Bridge Loan Agreement. The Company must repay the Bridge Loan by February 17, 2011. It may
optionally prepay the Bridge Loan at any time in whole or in part. However, it must prepay the Bridge Loan with any net cash proceeds from
certain asset sales, the net cash proceeds of certain equity and debt issuances, and the net cash proceeds of certain recovery events.

The Bridge Loan bears interest at a rate of 1.0% plus the Alternate Base Rate. The Alternate Base Rate is the greater of (i) KeyBank�s prime rate,
(ii) 0.5% plus the weighted average of the overnight Federal funds rate and (iii) 1.0% plus one-month LIBOR. If principal, interest or fees on the
Bridge Loan are not paid when due, whether at stated maturity, upon acceleration or otherwise, such overdue amount shall bear interest at a rate
per annum equal to the Alternate Base Rate plus 3.0%.

The Bridge Loan Agreement contains covenants, which include maintenance of certain leverage and fixed charge coverage ratios, limitations on
indebtedness, investments in, and loans to, other business units, the Company�s ability to enter into business combinations and asset sales, and
certain other financial and non-financial covenants. These covenants also apply to certain of the Company�s subsidiaries. The Bridge Loan
Agreement is secured by a first priority security interest in the Company�s service center located in Jeffersonville, Indiana (the �Service Center�)
and in certain other assets relating to the ownership and occupancy of the Service Center.

The proceeds of the Bridge Loan and the Increased Credit Commitment, together with a portion of the Company�s cash reserves, were used to
fund the settlement with Visa. The Settlement Agreement was consummated on February 18, 2010, with a payment of $58.6 million.

11. Stockholders� Equity

Common Stock Repurchases. No common stock was repurchased during the six months ended June 30, 2010. During the six months ended
June 30, 2009, the Company repurchased 350,400 shares of its common stock at average per share costs of $9.14 under authorizations from its
Board of Directors. Under these authorizations, the Company repurchased an aggregate of 2,924,684 shares of its common stock through
June 30, 2010 at a cost of $65.1 million, or an average cost of $22.25 per share. At June 30, 2010, the Company has remaining authorization to
repurchase up to 175,316 additional shares of its common stock.

On February 28, 2008, the Company�s Board of Directors resolved to retire all common shares repurchased and include the retired shares in the
authorized and unissued shares of the Company. Until February 28, 2008, the final disposition of the repurchased shares had not been decided.
The excess of the purchase price of the treasury stock over the stated value was allocated between additional paid-in capital and retained
earnings.
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Dividends on Common Stock. During the six months ended June 30, 2010 and the twelve months ended December 31, 2009, the Company�s
Board of Directors declared the following quarterly cash dividends on common stock:

Date Declared Record Date Date Paid

Amount Paid
Per

Common
Share

Six Months Ended June 30, 2010:
February 18, 2010 March 5, 2010 March 15, 2010 $ 0.01
May 4, 2010 May 25, 2010 June 15, 2010 $ 0.01

Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2009:
February 20, 2009 March 9, 2009 March 16, 2009 $ 0.025
May 7, 2009 May 25, 2009 June 15, 2009 $ 0.01
August 3, 2009 August 25, 2009 September 15, 2009 $ 0.01
November 3, 2009 November 23, 2009 December 15, 2009 $ 0.01

On August 3, 2010, the Company�s Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.01 per share of common stock, payable on
September 15, 2010 to stockholders of record as of August 25, 2010.

12. Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation�The Company is involved in certain legal proceedings and claims, which arise in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of the
Company, based on consultations with outside counsel, the results of any of these ordinary course matters, individually and in the aggregate, are
not expected to have a material effect on its results of operations, financial condition or cash flows.

The Company is also subject to lawsuits, claims, and investigations which are the result of the Processing System Intrusion. See Contingencies
below and Note 3 for a description of the Processing System Intrusion.

Contingencies�The Company collects and stores sensitive data about its merchant customers and bankcard holders. If the Company�s network
security is breached or sensitive merchant or cardholder data is misappropriated, the Company could be exposed to assessments, fines or
litigation costs.

On January 20, 2009, the Company publicly announced the discovery of a criminal breach of its payment systems environment (the �Processing
System Intrusion�). The Processing System Intrusion involved malicious software that appears to have been used to collect in-transit, unencrypted
payment card data while it was being processed by the Company during the transaction authorization process. See Note 3 Processing System
Intrusion for further detail and information regarding the Processing System Intrusion and the settlement and payment of a claim.

Leases�The Company leases various office spaces and certain equipment under operating leases with remaining terms ranging up to eight years.
The majority of the office space lease agreements contain renewal options and generally require the Company to pay certain operating expenses.
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Future minimum lease commitments under non-cancelable leases as of June 30, 2010 were as follows:

(In thousands)

Twelve Months Ended June 30,
Capital
Leases

Operating
Leases

2011 $ 193 $ 6,070
2012 8 4,809
2013 �  3,584
2014 �  2,049
2015 �  1,838
Thereafter �  4,366

Total Minimum Payments 201 $ 22,716

Interest Amount (10) 

Present Value of Minimum Payments $ 191

Rent expense for leased property was $880,000 and $760,000, respectively, for the three months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, and $1.7 million
and $1.6 million, respectively, for the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009.

Commitments�Certain officers of the Company have entered into employee confidential information and non-competition agreements under
which they are entitled to severance pay equal to their base salary and medical benefits for 12 months and a pro-rated bonus in the event they are
terminated by the Company other than for cause. There were no payouts under these agreements in 2010.

The following table reflects the Company�s other significant contractual obligations, including leases from above, as of June 30, 2010:

Payments Due by Period

Contractual Obligations Total
Less than
1 year

1 to 3
Years

3 to 5
years

More
than
5 years

(In thousands)
Processing providers (a) $ 10,462 $ 7,919 $ 2,176 $ 367 $ �  
Telecommunications providers 10,314 4,211 6,103 �  �  
Office and equipment leases 22,716 6,070 8,393 3,887 4,366
Term Credit Facility (b) 12,500 8,333 4,167 �  �  
Bridge Loan (c) 28,000 28,000 �  �  �  
Construction and equipment (d) 162 162 �  �  �  
Capital lease obligations 201 193 8 �  �  

$ 84,355 $ 54,888 $ 20,847 $ 4,254 $ 4,366
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(a) The Company has agreements with several third-party processors to provide to us on a non-exclusive basis payment processing and
transmittal, transaction authorization and data capture services, and access to various reporting tools. Our agreements with third-party
processors require the Company to submit a minimum monthly number of transactions or volume for processing. If the Company submits
a number of transactions or volume that is lower than the minimum, it is required to pay the third-party processors the fees that they would
have received if the Company had submitted the required minimum number or volume of transactions.

(b) Interest rates on the Term Credit Facility are variable. If interest rates were to remain at the June 30, 2010 level, the Company would make
interest payments of $296,000 in the next 1 year and $50,000 in the next 1 to 3 years, or a total of $346,000. In addition, the Company has
$75 million outstanding under our Revolving Credit Facility at June 30, 2010. The Revolving Credit Facility is available on a revolving
basis until September 4, 2012.

(c) Interest rates on the Bridge Loan are variable. If interest rates were to remain at the June 30, 2010 level, the Company would make interest
payments of $655,000 in the next year.

(d) These amounts relate to contractual commitments we have for constructing our primary service center in Jeffersonville, Indiana. Through
June 30, 2010, we have spent approximately $67.9 million of cash on our primary service center, including $1.7 million to acquire land.

22

Edgar Filing: HEARTLAND PAYMENT SYSTEMS INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 40



Table of Contents

Heartland Payment Systems, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes To Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements�(Continued)

(unaudited)

13. Segments

The determination of the Company�s business segments is based on how the Company monitors and manages the performance of its operations.
The Company�s operating segments are strategic business units that offer different products and services. They are managed separately because
each business requires different marketing strategies, personnel skill sets and technology.

The Company has two reportable segments, as follows: (1) Card, which provides payment processing and related services for bankcard
transactions; and (2) Other. The Card segment includes CPOS, our Canadian payments processing subsidiary, since March 2008, and Network
Services since May 2008. Goodwill and intangible assets resulting from the acquisitions of CPOS and Network Services are reported in the Card
segment. At June 30, 2010, goodwill related to CPOS and Network Services was $52.4 million. The Other segment includes Payroll, which
provides payroll and related tax filing services, and PrepaidCard, which provides prepaid card, stored-value card and loyalty and gift card
solutions. The PrepaidCard operating segment includes Debitek, General Meters and Chockstone since its November 2008 acquisition. Neither
the Payroll operating segment nor the PrepaidCard operating segment meet the defined thresholds for determining individually reportable
segments. Goodwill and intangible assets resulting from the acquisition of Debitek, General Meters and Chockstone are reported in the Other
segment. At June 30, 2010, goodwill related to Debitek, General Meters and Chockstone was $9.1 million.

The Company allocates revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities to segments only where directly attributable. The unallocated corporate
administration amounts are costs attributed to finance, corporate administration, human resources and corporate services. At June 30, 2010 and
2009, 47% and 49% respectively, of the Other segment�s total assets were funds that the Company holds as a fiduciary in its Payroll services
activities for payment to taxing authorities. Reconciling items include eliminations of intercompany investments and receivables.
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A summary of the Company�s segments for the three and six periods ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 was as follows:

Card
Segment

Other
Segment

Unallocated
Corporate

Administration
Amounts

Reconciling
Items

Total
Amount

(In thousands)
Three Months Ended June 30, 2010
Total revenues $ 466,223 $ 9,709 $ �  $ (51) $ 475,881
Depreciation and amortization 5,396 742 186 �  6,324
Interest income 37 �  �  �  37
Interest expense 1,214 6 �  (50) 1,170
Net income (loss) attributable to Heartland 12,383 (340) (5,900) �  6,143
Total assets 654,746 56,005 �  (155,260) 555,491

Three Months Ended June 30, 2009
Total revenues $ 410,036 $ 7,378 $ �  $ (41) $ 417,373
Depreciation and amortization 4,589 519 193 �  5,301
Interest income 28 �  �  �  28
Interest expense 571 11 �  (37) 545
Net income (loss) attributable to Heartland 3,716 (262) (6,069) �  (2,615) 
Total assets 585,582 52,247 �  (135,921) 501,908

Six Months Ended June 30, 2010
Total revenues $ 867,435 $ 19,703 $ �  $ (101) $ 887,037
Depreciation and amortization 10,848 1,466 295 �  12,609
Interest income 68 �  �  �  68
Interest expense 2,356 12 �  (97) 2,271
Net income (loss) attributable to Heartland 31,225 311 (11,165) �  20,371
Total assets 654,746 56,005 �  (155,260) 555,491

Six Months Ended June 30, 2009
Total revenues $ 774,648 $ 14,994 $ �  $ (97) $ 789,545
Depreciation and amortization 8,841 977 386 �  10,204
Interest income 57 �  �  �  57
Interest expense 1,153 22 �  (89) 1,086
Net income (loss) attributable to Heartland 7,248 (560) (11,758) �  (5,070) 
Total assets 585,582 52,247 �  (135,921) 501,908
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14. Earnings Per Share

The Company presents earnings per share data following the established standards for the computation and presentation of basic and diluted
earnings per share data. Under these standards, the dilutive effect of stock options is excluded from the calculation of basic earnings per share
but included in diluted earnings per share except in periods of net loss where inclusion would be anti-dilutive. The following is a reconciliation
of the amounts used to calculate basic and diluted earnings per share:

Three Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2010 2009 2010 2009
(In thousands, except per share data)

Basic:
Net income (loss) attributable to Heartland $ 6,143 $ (2,615) $ 20,371 $ (5,070) 

Weighted average common stock outstanding 37,935 37,458 37,782 37,496

Earnings (loss) per share $ 0.16 $ (0.07) $ 0.54 $ (0.14) 

Diluted:
Net income (loss) attributable to Heartland $ 6,143 $ (2,615) $ 20,371 $ (5,070) 

Basic weighted average common stock outstanding 37,935 37,458 37,782 37,496
Effect of dilutive instruments:
Stock options 1,408 290 1,389 299

Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 39,343 37,748 39,171 37,795

Earnings (loss) per share (a) $ 0.16 $ (0.07) $ 0.52 $ (0.14) 

(a) Due to the net loss in the 2009 periods, calculating Diluted Earnings Per Share using diluted weighted average shares would be
anti-dilutive. Therefore, weighted average common stock outstanding was used to calculate Diluted Earnings Per Share for the three and
six months ended June 30, 2009.

15. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Management uses methods and assumptions to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate
fair value. Fair value equals quoted market price for securities held as available-for-sale investments. Other financial instruments include cash
and cash equivalents, certificates of deposit, receivables, various accounts payable and accrued expenses. The fair value of such financial
instruments approximates their carrying value due to their short maturity and pricing terms.
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Item 2. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with the condensed
consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report,
and the consolidated financial statements, notes to consolidated financial statements and Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations and the risk factors contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009
(the �2009 Form 10-K�).

Forward Looking Statements

Unless the context requires otherwise, references in this report to �the Company,� �we,� �us,� and �our� refer to Heartland Payment Systems, Inc. and
our subsidiaries.

Some of the information in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q may contain forward-looking statements that are based on our management�s
beliefs and assumptions and on information currently available to our management. Forward-looking statements include the information
concerning our possible or assumed future results of operations, the impact of the criminal breach of our payment system environment (the
�Processing System Intrusion�), business strategies, financing plans, competitive position, industry environment, potential growth opportunities,
the effects of future regulation and the effects of competition. Forward-looking statements include all statements that are not historical facts and
can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as the words �believe,� �expect,� �anticipate,� �intend,� �plan,� �estimate� or similar
expressions.

Forward-looking statements involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Actual results may differ materially from those expressed in the
forward-looking statements. You should understand that many important factors, in addition to those discussed elsewhere in this report, could
cause our results to differ materially from those expressed in the forward-looking statements. Some of these factors are described in Item 1A.
Risk Factors of the 2009 Form 10-K and include, without limitation, the significantly unfavorable economic conditions facing the United States,
the results and effects of the Processing System Intrusion including the outcome of our investigation, the extent of cardholder information
compromised and the consequences to our business, including the effects on sales and costs in connection with the system breach, our
competitive environment, the business cycles and credit risks of our merchants, chargeback liability, merchant attrition, problems with our bank
sponsor, our relationships with third-party bankcard payment processors, our inability to pass increased interchange fees along to our merchants,
economic conditions, systems failures and government regulation.

Overview

General

Our primary business is to provide bankcard payment processing services to merchants in the United States and Canada. This involves
facilitating the exchange of information and funds between merchants and cardholders� financial institutions, providing end-to-end electronic
payment processing services to merchants, including merchant set-up and training, transaction authorization and electronic draft capture,
clearing and settlement, merchant accounting, merchant assistance and support, and risk management. Our merchant customers primarily fall
into two categories: our core small and midsized merchants (referred to as Small and Midsized Enterprises, or �SME�) and large national
merchants, primarily in the petroleum industry. We also provide additional services to our merchants, such as payroll processing, gift and loyalty
programs, paper check processing, and we sell and rent point-of-sale devices and supplies.

On January 20, 2009, we publicly announced the Processing System Intrusion, which apparently occurred during some portion of 2008. See ��
Processing System Intrusion� for more detail.
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At June 30, 2010, we provided our bankcard payment processing services to approximately 174,600 active SME merchants located across the
United States. This represents a 0.7% increase from the 173,400 active SME merchants at December 31, 2009, and a 1.0% increase over the
172,850 active SME merchants at June 30, 2009. At June 30, 2010, we provided bankcard payment processing services to 70 large national
merchants with 53,329 locations. Additionally, we provided bankcard payment processing services to over 7,400 merchants in Canada.

Our total bankcard processing volume for the three months ended June 30, 2010 was $19.3 billion, an 8.7% increase from the $17.8 billion
processed during the three months ended June 30, 2009. Our total bank card processing volume for the six months ended June 30, 2010 was
$36.4 billion, a 9.1% increase from the $33.3 billion processed during the six months ended June 30, 2009. Our SME bankcard processing
volume for the three and six months ended June 30, 2010 included increases for American Express and Discover processing. Our Discover
processing volume also benefited from our purchase of an existing merchant portfolio from Discover during the third quarter of 2009. Bankcard
processing volume for the three and six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 was as follows:

Three Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2010 2009 2010 2009
(in millions)

SME merchants $ 16,316 $ 15,110 $ 30,722 $ 28,547
Large national merchants 2,874 2,566 5,372 4,580
Canada 146 119 261 210

Total bankcard processing volume (a) $ 19,336 $ 17,795 $ 36,355 $ 33,337

(a) Bankcard processing volume includes volume for credit and signature debit transactions.
Merchant attrition is expected in the card payment processing industry in the ordinary course of business. We experience attrition in merchant
bankcard processing volume resulting from several factors, including business closures, transfers of merchants� accounts to our competitors and
account closures that we initiate due to heightened credit risks relating to, or contract breaches by, merchants, and (when applicable) same store
sales contraction. We measure total processing volume attrition against all SME merchants that were processing with us in the same month a
year earlier. During the three months ended June 30, 2010, we experienced an improved 15.8% average annualized attrition in our SME
bankcard processing volume and for the 2010 six-month period we experienced attrition of 17.1%. During 2009, 2008 and 2007, we experienced
average annual attrition in our SME bankcard processing volume of 22.6%, 17.3% and 12.6%, respectively. Much of our attrition is related to
business closures, which accelerated in 2009 and 2008 due to weak economic conditions, and in 2009 and 2008 our volume attrition was also
significantly impacted by overall contraction in same stores sales.

In our SME business, we measure same store sales growth or contraction as the change in bankcard processing volume for all bankcard
merchants that were processing with us in the same month a year earlier. During the three months ended June 30, 2010, same store sales grew
1.1% on average, compared to 7.8% contraction on average in the 2009 full year. Same store sales growth or contraction results from the
combination of the increasing or decreasing use by consumers of bankcards for the purchase of goods and services at the point of sale, and sales
growth or contraction experienced by our retained SME bankcard merchants. The following table compares our same store sales growth or
contraction during 2010, 2009, 2008 and 2007:

Same Store Sales Growth (Contraction) 2010 2009 2008 2007
First Quarter (1.5)% (7.6)% 0.6% 3.4% 
Second Quarter 1.1% (9.7)% (0.1)% 3.3% 
Third Quarter (8.6)% (2.0)% 3.6% 
Fourth Quarter (5.2)% (6.8)% 2.1% 
Full Year (7.8)% (2.1)% 3.0% 
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We attribute the deterioration in same store sales percentages we experienced in our SME business from the third quarter of 2008 through the
fourth quarter of 2009 to declining economic conditions including impacts from severely contracted credit markets, a weak housing market,
historically low consumer and investor confidence and high unemployment rates. Our same store sales contraction experience tracked the overall
economic downturn. The improvement in same store sales percentages experienced in 2010 also tracks the general economy, as well as
benefitting from year-over-year comparison to weaker processing volumes. Management believes that the challenging economic conditions may
continue to result in modest, if any, improvements in our merchants� businesses.

Historically, increases in our direct sales force, including our Relationship Managers, have led to significant growth in the total SME merchants
for which we process and the gross margin generated by those merchants. We compensate our sales managers based on their success in growing
the sales force and increasing the total SME merchant base in their regions. In 2010, our sales managers are focused on increasing our number of
Relationship Managers. During the six months ended June 30, 2010, we grew the number of Relationship Managers by 30% to 1,393, from
1,069 at December 31, 2009. During 2009, our Relationship Manager count contracted from 1,166 Relationship Managers at December 31,
2008. We measure the overall production of our sales force by gross margin installed, which reflects the expected annual gross profit from a
merchant contract after deducting processing and servicing costs associated with that revenue. Our newly installed gross margin for the six
months ended June 30, 2010 decreased 23.6% from the gross margin we installed during the six months ended June 30, 2009. We attribute this
decline in newly installed gross margin to the still uncertain economy, the dislocation caused by our transition to the Industry Specialization
Model (�ISM�), and our focus on increasing the size and training of our sales force.

The ISM model focuses the sales force on specific industry verticals, whereby Relationship Managers are assigned protected merchant verticals
(e.g., restaurants, healthcare and lodging) within their territories. In order to retain their protected lists, the Relationship Manager is required to
meet a minimum level of documented daily merchant visits within the protected vertical. We expect the ISM to continue to drive an increase in
the number of Relationship Managers, and to potentially increase the productivity of our sales force. We have added and improved training tools
in order to improve the success rate of newly-hired salespeople, and to increase sales force productivity.

We selected the restaurant industry for our first merchant vertical for ISMs, and subsequently initiated ISM for the medical and lodging
verticals. An element of our strategy is to align with leading industry organizations in a vertical to offer our products to that organization�s
members through a regional or national endorsement. For example, in the restaurant vertical, we announced in January 2010 that we formed a
strategic partnership with the National Restaurant Association, which will deliver a unified payments processing platform to the restaurant
industry. This alliance is expected to provide restaurateurs nationwide with effective tools, solutions and resources that will help them reduce
their expenses, improve operations and increase profitability, all from one source with integrated technology product platforms. Founded in
1919, The National Restaurant Association is the leading business association for the restaurant industry, which is comprised of approximately
945,000 restaurant and foodservice outlets and a work force of approximately 13 million employees.

The bankcard revenue we earn in our SME business is recurring in nature, as we typically enter into three-year service contracts with our card
processing merchants that, in order to qualify for the agreed-upon pricing, require the merchant to achieve bankcard processing volume
minimums. Most of our SME revenue is payment processing fees, which are a combination of a fee equal to a percentage of the dollar amount of
each Visa or MasterCard transaction we process plus a flat fee per transaction. We make mandatory payments of interchange fees to card-issuing
banks through Visa and MasterCard and dues, assessments and other network fees to Visa and MasterCard. Our SME gross bankcard processing
revenue is largely driven by Visa and MasterCard volume processed by merchants with whom we have processing contracts; as such, we also
generally benefit from consumers� increasing use of bankcards in place of cash and checks, and sales growth, if any, experienced by our retained
bankcard merchants. More recently, we have experienced growth in card processing revenues by processing transaction for SME merchants new
to accepting American Express and from processing Discover transactions.
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In contrast to SME card processing revenues, Network Services revenues are largely driven by the number of transactions it processes (whether
settled, or only authorized), not its processing volume, as the larger merchants which comprise Network Services� customer base pay on a per
transaction basis for processing services. Additionally, we acquire and settle transactions on our front and back end systems for American
Express transactions for which we receive compensation from American Express on a per transaction basis. The number of transactions we
processed for larger national merchants and American Express for the three and six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 were as follows:

Three Months
Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2010 2009 2010 2009
(in thousands)

Large national merchants:
Settled 124,189 122,032 231,924 227,045
Authorized 675,467 606,261 1,252,734 1,142,482
American Express 3,649 �  4,656 �  

Total 803,305 728,293 1,489,314 1,369,527

We have developed a number of proprietary payment processing systems to increase our operating efficiencies and distribute our processing and
merchant data to our three main constituencies: our merchant base, our sales force and our customer service staff. We provide authorization and
data capture services to our merchants through our own front-end processing system, which we call HPS Exchange. We provide clearing,
settlement and merchant accounting services through our own internally developed back-end processing system, which we call Passport.
Passport enables us to more effectively customize these services to the needs of our Relationship Managers and merchants.

During the three months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, we processed approximately 90% and 87%, respectively, of our SME bankcard
merchant transactions through HPS Exchange. At June 30, 2010 and 2009, we were processing approximately 99% of our active SME bankcard
merchants on Passport. Our internally developed systems are providing substantially all aspects of most of our merchants� bankcard processing
needs, excluding Network Services. Previously, we relied on third party vendors for many of these services including bankcard authorization and
data capture services, settlement and merchant accounting services. We will continue to process our Network Services transactions and a
minority of our SME transactions through third party systems.

We also provide payroll processing services throughout the United States. At June 30, 2010, we processed payroll for 10,632 customers, an
increase of 19.6% from 8,887 payroll customers at June 30, 2009. At December 31, 2009, we processed payroll for 9,382 payroll customers.
During 2008 and 2009, we developed a new comprehensive payroll management system, which we refer to as PlusOne Payroll, that streamlines
all aspects of the payroll process to enable time and cost savings. PlusOne Payroll currently is being rolled out to both new and existing payroll
customers. The PlusOne Payroll platform enables us to process payroll on a large scale and provide customizable solutions for businesses of all
sizes.

Processing System Intrusion

On January 20, 2009, we publicly announced the discovery of the �Processing System Intrusion.� The Processing System Intrusion involved
malicious software that appears to have been used to collect in-transit, unencrypted payment card data while it was being processed by us during
the transaction authorization process. Such data is not required to be encrypted while in transit under current payment card industry guidelines.
We had received confirmation of our compliance with the Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard (�PCI-DSS�) from a third-party assessor
each year since the standard was announced, including in April 2008, before the discovery of the Processing System Intrusion. Subsequent to the
discovery of the Processing System Intrusion, we were advised by Visa that based on Visa�s investigation of the Processing System Intrusion,
Visa had removed us from Visa�s published list of PCI-DSS compliant service providers. We were similarly advised by MasterCard that, based
on MasterCard�s investigation of the Processing System Intrusion, MasterCard believed we were in violation of the MasterCard Standards and,
based on that belief, MasterCard removed us from MasterCard�s published list of Compliant Service Providers. In April 2009, we were
re-certified as PCI-DSS compliant and the assessor�s report attesting to such re-certification has been reviewed and approved by Visa. As such,
we were returned to MasterCard�s
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published list of Compliant Service Providers and Visa�s Global List of PCI-DSS Validated Service Providers. Card data that could have been
exposed by the Processing System Intrusion included card numbers, expiration dates, and certain other information from the magnetic stripe on
the back of the payment card (including, for a small percentage of cards, the cardholder�s name). However, the cardholder information that we
process does not include addresses or Social Security numbers. Also, we believe that no unencrypted PIN data was captured and that the breach
has been contained and did not extend beyond 2008.

Since its announcement of the Processing System Intrusion on January 20, 2009 and through June 30, 2010, the Company has expensed a total
of $144.2 million, before reducing those charges by $30.7 million of total insurance recoveries. The majority of the total charges, or
approximately $114.7 million, related to consummated settlements of claims, settlements agreed upon, or settlements deemed likely to be agreed
upon in the near term. Approximately $29.5 million of the total charges were for legal fees and costs we incurred for investigations, defending
various claims and actions, remedial actions and crisis management services.

During the six months ended June 30, 2010, the Company recovered from its insurance providers approximately $26.8 million of the costs it
incurred for the Processing System Intrusion and expensed approximately $11.3 million for accruals, legal fees and costs it incurred for
defending various claims and actions, resulting in a net recovery of $15.5 million, or $0.24 per share. For the three months ended June 30, 2010,
the Company expensed a total of $4.9 million, or about $0.07 per share, respectively, associated with the Processing System Intrusion.

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2009, the Company expensed a total of $19.4 million and $32.0 million, respectively, or about
$0.32 and $0.53 per share, respectively, for accruals, legal fees and costs it incurred for defending various claims and actions associated with the
Processing System Intrusion.

At June 30, 2010, the Company carried a $42.3 million Reserve for Processing System Intrusion on its Consolidated Balance Sheet. The
majority of this Reserve related to:

(i) the settlement agreement we entered into with MasterCard on May 19, 2010, which is expected to be consummated late in the third
quarter of 2010, and

(ii) a settlement offer deemed likely to be agreed upon in the near term with a claimant.
Notwithstanding its belief that it has strong defenses against the claim that is the subject of the settlement offer described in (ii) above, the
Company decided to make the settlement offer and engage in settlement discussions in attempts to avoid the costs and uncertainty of litigation.
The Company is prepared to vigorously defend itself against any unsettled claims relating to the Processing System Intrusion that have been
asserted against it and its sponsor banks to date. The Company feels it has strong defenses to all the claims that have been asserted against it and
its sponsor banks relating to the Processing System Intrusion.

Additional costs we expect to incur for legal fees and settlements related to the Processing System Intrusion will be recognized as incurred. Such
costs could be material and could adversely impact our results of operations, financial condition and cash flow.

On December 17, 2009, we entered into a settlement agreement and release with American Express to resolve potential claims and other
disputes among us and American Express (and its issuers) with respect to the Processing System Intrusion, and subsequently we paid
approximately $3.5 million in full and final satisfaction of any and all claims of American Express and its issuers arising from or relating to the
Processing System Intrusion. Such settlement agreement and release contains mutual releases by and between us and American Express (on
behalf of itself and its issuers) relating to the Processing System Intrusion.

On January 7, 2010, the Company, Heartland Bank, KeyBank National Association (�KeyBank,� and, together with Heartland Bank, the �Sponsor
Banks�), and Visa U.S.A. Inc., Visa International Service Association and Visa Inc. (collectively, �Visa�) entered into a settlement agreement (the
�Settlement Agreement�) to resolve potential claims and other disputes among the Company, the Sponsor Banks and Visa with respect to the
potential rights and claims of Visa and certain issuers of Visa-branded credit and debit cards related to the Processing System Intrusion. After
including a $780,000 credit for fines previously
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collected by Visa during 2009, the amount paid by us under the Settlement Agreement was $59.3 million. The costs of this settlement were
included in the Company�s Provision for Processing System Intrusion on our Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended
December 31, 2009 and in its Reserve for Processing System Intrusion on its Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2009.

On February 18, 2010, the Company entered into a bridge loan agreement (the �Bridge Loan Agreement�) with KeyBank, as administrative agent,
and KeyBank and Heartland Bank as bridge lenders. On that date, KeyBank made a bridge loan to the Company in the amount of $20.0 million
and Heartland Bank made a bridge loan in the amount of $8.0 million (collectively, the �Bridge Loan�), which are the maximum amounts that the
Company may borrow under the Bridge Loan Agreement. The Company must repay the Bridge Loan by February 17, 2011.

On February 18, 2010, the Company also entered into a Commitment Increase Agreement pursuant to the Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement dated as of May 30, 2008 (the �Commitment Increase Agreement�) whereby KeyBank as one of the lenders under the Amended and
Restated Credit Agreement agreed to increase its revolving credit commitment to us under the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement by
$25.0 million (the �Increased Credit Commitment�). The terms of the Increased Credit Commitment are similar to the terms of the Revolving
Credit Facility.

The proceeds of the Bridge Loan and the Increased Credit Commitment, together with a portion of our cash reserves, were used to fund the
settlement with Visa. The Settlement Agreement was consummated on February 18, 2010, with a payment of $58.6 million.

On May 19, 2010, the Company entered into a settlement agreement with MasterCard Worldwide (the �MasterCard Settlement Agreement�) to
resolve potential claims and other disputes among the Company, the Sponsor Banks and MasterCard related to the Processing System Intrusion.
Under the MasterCard Settlement Agreement, alternative recovery offers totaling $41.4 million were made to eligible MasterCard issuers with
respect to losses alleged to have been incurred by them as a result of the Processing System Intrusion. The $41.4 million includes a $6.6 million
credit for fines previously collected by MasterCard during 2009, so the maximum further amount to be paid by the Company under the
MasterCard Settlement Agreement is $34.8 million. Payment of the final settlement amount is expected late in the third quarter of 2010,
although consummation of the settlement is subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions described in the Company�s Current Report on Form
8-K filed on May 19, 2010 and set forth in the MasterCard Settlement Agreement, which is filed as Exhibit 10.1 to such Form 8-K. The costs of
this settlement were included in the Company�s Provision for Processing System Intrusion on its Consolidated Statement of Operations for the
year ended December 31, 2009 and in its Reserve for Processing System Intrusion on its Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2010.

Second Quarter of 2010 Financial Results

Our financial results for the three months ended June 30, 2010 have improved relative to recent quarterly results, but continue to reflect the
impacts of adverse economic conditions, particularly on our SME merchant base, and the costs of the Processing System Intrusion. Both the
levels of new SME merchant installs and processing volume at existing SME merchants continue to be unfavorably impacted by the uncertain
economy. For the three months ended June 30, 2010, we recorded net income of $6.1 million, or $0.16 per share, compared to a net loss of $2.6
million, or $0.07 per share, in the three months ended June 30, 2009.

In the three months ended June 30, 2010, we recorded total expenses of $4.9 million, or $0.07 per share, and for the three months ended June 30,
2009, we recorded total expenses of $19.4 million, or $0.32 per share, associated with the Processing System Intrusion (see �� Processing System
Intrusion� for more detail). The following is a summary of our financial results for the three months ended June 30, 2010:

� During the three months ended June 30, 2010, our SME processing volume increased 8.0% to $16.3 billion from $15.1 billion during
the three months ended June 30, 2009. We earn percentage-based revenues on our SME processing volume. Our SME bankcard
processing volume for the three months ended June 30, 2010 included increases for American Express and Discover processing.
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� During the three months ended June 30, 2010, we generated revenues on the 124.2 million large national merchant transactions that
we settled and on the 675.5 million large national merchant transactions that we authorized. These compare to 122 million
transactions settled and 606 million transactions authorized during the three months ended June 30, 2009. We earn transaction-based
revenues on our large national merchant card processing volume.

� Net revenue, which we define as total revenues less interchange fees and dues, assessments and fees, increased $8.6 million, or 8.1%,
from $106.6 million in the three months ended June 30, 2009 to $115.1 million in the three months ended June 30, 2010. The
increase in net revenue was driven by the increases in net revenue from our SME merchants and increases in equipment-related
income, primarily from prepaid card and stored-value card systems at our Debitek, Inc. subsidiary.

� Our processing and servicing expense increased 19.0%, from $49.9 million in the three months ended June 30, 2009, to $59.3 million
in the three months ended June 30, 2010 due to increased costs of sales related to the higher payroll and equipment-related revenues,
costs associated with higher SME bankcard processing volume, an increase in the costs of support personnel and costs of investments
we have made in enhancing our processing systems.

� Our general and administrative expenses decreased 1.4% from $24.4 million in the three months ended June 30, 2009 to $24.1
million in the three months ended June 30, 2010 due to a decrease in expense related to holding our periodic sales and servicing
organization summit.

� Our income from operations, which we also refer to as operating income, declined to $15.2 million for the three months ended
June 30, 2010, from $15.6 million for the three months ended June 30, 2009. This decline was primarily due to the continuing
limiting effect which economic conditions had on growth in our net revenues, and to increases in processing and servicing expense.
Our operating margin, which we measure as operating income divided by net revenue, was 13.2% for the three months ended
June 30, 2010, compared to 14.7% for the three months ended June 30, 2009.

See �� Results of Operations � Three Months Ended June 30, 2010 Compared to Three Months Ended June 30, 2009� for a more detailed discussion
of our financial results.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based on our condensed consolidated financial statements,
which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. These condensed consolidated
financial statements are unaudited. In our opinion, the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements include all normal recurring
adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of our financial position at June 30, 2010, our results of operations, our changes in stockholders�
equity and our cash flows for the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009. Results of operations reported for interim periods are not
necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the year ended December 31, 2010. The preparation of these financial statements requires
us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Actual results could differ from
those estimates. Our significant accounting policies are more fully described in Note 2 to our consolidated financial statements included
elsewhere in this report and in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009. The critical accounting estimates
described here are those that are most important to the depiction of our financial condition and results of operations, including those whose
application requires management�s most subjective judgment in making estimates about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain. The
line items on our income statement and balance sheet, which are impacted by management�s estimates, are described below.

Revenue

Our bankcard processing revenue is derived from processing and settling Visa and MasterCard bankcard transactions for our merchant
customers. Our most significant expense related to the generation of those revenues is interchange fees, which are set by the Visa and
MasterCard card networks, and paid to the card issuing banks. For our SME merchants bankcard processing, we do not offset bankcard
processing revenues and interchange fees because our business practice is to advance the interchange fees to most of our merchants when
settling their daily transactions (thus paying the full amount of the transaction to the merchant), and then to collect our full discount fees from
our merchants on the first business day of the next month. We believe this policy aids in new business generation, as our merchants benefit from
bookkeeping simplicity. However, this results in our carrying a large receivable from our merchants at each period-end, and a corresponding but
smaller payable to our sponsor banks, which are settled on the first business day after
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the period-end. As we are at risk for the receivables, we record the associated revenues on a gross processing revenue basis in our consolidated
income statements. Certain of our competitors report their processing revenue net of interchange fees. This is because the card issuing banks
make their payments to these competitors net of those interchange fees, and these acquirers pay this reduced amount to their merchants. Since
the acquisition of Network Services, we also record a portion of our processing revenues net of interchange fees because the daily cash
settlement with Network Services� merchants is net of interchange fees.

Capitalized Customer Acquisition Costs

Capitalized customer acquisition costs consist of (1) up-front signing bonuses paid to Relationship Managers and sales managers, referred to as
the salesperson or salespersons, for the establishment of new merchant relationships, and (2) deferred acquisition cost representing the estimated
cost of buying out the commissions of vested salespersons at some point in the future. Capitalized customer acquisition costs represent
incremental, direct customer acquisition costs that are recoverable through gross margins associated with SME merchant contracts. The
capitalized customer acquisition costs are amortized using a method which approximates a proportional revenue approach over the initial
three-year term of the merchant contract.

The amount of the up-front signing bonus paid for new SME bankcard, payroll and check processing accounts is based on the estimated gross
margin for the first year of the merchant contract. The gross signing bonuses paid during the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 were
$13.0 million and $17.9 million respectively and for the full year ended December 31, 2009 were $34.7 million. The signing bonus paid, amount
capitalized, and related amortization are adjusted at the end of the first year to reflect the actual gross margin generated by the merchant contract
during that year. The net signing bonus adjustments made during the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 were $(1.6) million and $(0.2)
million, respectively. Positive signing bonus adjustments occur when the actual gross margin generated by the merchant contract during the first
year exceeds the estimated gross margin for that year, resulting in the underpayment of the up-front signing bonus and would be paid to the
relevant sales person. Negative signing bonus adjustments result from prior overpayments of up-front signing bonuses, and would be recovered
from the relevant salesperson. The amount of signing bonuses paid which remained subject to adjustment at June 30, 2010 was $27.8 million.

The deferred acquisition cost component is accrued for vested salespersons over the first year of SME bankcard merchant processing, consistent
with the build-up in the accrued buyout liability, which is described below.

Management evaluates the capitalized customer acquisition costs for impairment at each balance sheet date by comparing, on a pooled basis by
vintage month of origination, the expected future net cash flows from underlying merchant relationships to the carrying amount of the
capitalized customer acquisition costs. If the estimated future net cash flows are lower than the recorded carrying amount, indicating an
impairment of the value of the capitalized customer acquisition costs, the impairment loss will be charged to operations. We have not recognized
an impairment loss for the six months ended June 30, 2010 or the year ended December 31, 2009.

Accrued Buyout Liability

We pay our salespersons residual commissions based on the gross margin generated from the monthly processing activity of SME merchants
signed by them. We refer to these residual commissions as the �owned� portion of such commissions, or �portfolio equity.� The salesperson has no
obligation to perform additional services for the merchant for so long as the merchant continues processing with us. We accrue the buyout
liability, which represents the estimated current settlement cost of buying out all vested and expected-to-vest salespersons for the owned portion
of such commissions. We also record a deferred acquisition cost asset related to those buyouts, and amortize that asset as an expense over the
initial 3-year contract term.

We consider a salesperson to be vested once they have established merchant relationships that generate the equivalent of $10,000 of monthly
gross margin. Vested status entitles the salesperson to his or her residual commissions for as long as the merchant processes with us, even if the
salesperson is no longer employed by us.

The accrued buyout liability is based on the SME merchants we have under contract at the balance sheet date, the gross margin we generated
from those accounts in the prior twelve months, the �owned�
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commission rate, and the fixed buyout multiple of 2.5 times the commissions. The liability related to a new merchant is therefore zero when the
merchant is installed, and increases over the twelve months following the installation date.

For unvested salespersons, the accrued buyout liability is accrued over the expected vesting period; however, no deferred acquisition cost is
capitalized as future services are required in order to vest. In calculating the accrued buyout liability for unvested salespersons, we have assumed
that 31% of unvested salespersons will vest in the future, which represents our historical vesting rate. A 5% increase to 36% in the expected
vesting rate would have increased the accrued buyout liability for unvested salespersons by $0.3 million at June 30, 2010 and December 31,
2009.

Buyout payments made to salespersons reduce the outstanding accrued buyout liability. Given our view of the duration of the cash flows
associated with a pool of merchant contracts, we believe that the benefits of such buyouts significantly exceed the cost, which typically
represents 2 to 2  1/2 years of commissions. If the cash flows associated with a pool of bought out contracts does not exceed this cost, we will
incur an economic loss on our decision to buyout the contracts. During the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 we made buyout payments
of approximately $3.5 million and $4.9 million, respectively, and during the 2009 full year, we made buyout payments of approximately $8.1
million. We expect to make buyout payments in the future, subject to available cash, as such buyouts reduce the monthly payments we will have
to make to our salespersons for such merchants in the future.

Reserve for Processing System Intrusion

The Processing System Intrusion requires us to make assumptions and estimates concerning the outcomes and related costs and losses in
connection with various lawsuits, claims, and investigations. We make our estimates of costs based on our best judgments and anticipated
outcomes of these lawsuits, claims, and investigations. See ��Overview�Processing System Intrusion� for a discussion of the Processing System
Intrusion.

Since our announcement of the Processing System Intrusion on January 20, 2009 and through June 30, 2010, the Company has expensed a total
of $144.2 million, before reducing those charges by $30.7 million of total insurance recoveries. The majority of the total charges, or
approximately $114.7 million, related to consummated settlements of claims, settlements agreed upon, or settlements deemed likely to be agreed
upon in the near term. Approximately $29.5 million of the total charges were for legal fees and costs we incurred for investigations, defending
various claims and actions, remedial actions and crisis management services.

During the six months ended June 30, 2010, the Company recovered from its insurance providers approximately $26.8 million of the costs it
incurred for the Processing System Intrusion and expensed approximately $11.3 million for accruals, legal fees and costs it incurred for
defending various claims and actions, resulting in a net recovery of $15.5 million, or $0.24 per share. For the three months ended June 30, 2010,
the Company expensed a total of $4.9 million, or about $0.07 per share, respectively, associated with the Processing System Intrusion.

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2009, the Company expensed a total of $19.4 million and $32.0 million, respectively, or about
$0.32 and $0.53 per share, respectively, for accruals, legal fees and costs it incurred for defending various claims and actions associated with the
Processing System Intrusion.

At June 30, 2010, the Company carried a $42.3 million Reserve for Processing System Intrusion on its Consolidated Balance Sheet. The
majority of this Reserve related to:

(i) the settlement agreement we entered into with MasterCard on May 19, 2010, which is expected to be consummated late in the third
quarter of 2010, and

(ii) a settlement offer deemed likely to be agreed upon in the near term with a claimant.
Notwithstanding its belief that it has strong defenses against the claim that is the subject of the settlement offer described in (ii) above, the
Company decided to make the settlement offer and engage in settlement discussions in attempts to avoid the costs and uncertainty of litigation.
The Company is prepared to
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vigorously defend itself against any unsettled claims relating to the Processing System Intrusion that have been asserted against it and its sponsor
banks to date. The Company feels it has strong defenses to all the claims that have been asserted against it and its sponsor banks relating to the
Processing System Intrusion.

Additional costs we expect to incur for legal fees and settlements related to the Processing System Intrusion will be recognized as incurred. Such
costs could be material and could adversely impact our results of operations, financial condition and cash flow.

Merchant Deposits and Loss Reserves

Disputes between a cardholder and a merchant periodically arise as a result of, among other things, the cardholder�s dissatisfaction with
merchandise quality or merchant services. Such disputes may not be resolved in the merchant�s favor. In these cases, the transaction is �charged
back� to the merchant, which means the purchase price is refunded to the customer by the card-issuing bank and charged to the merchant. If the
merchant is unable to fund the refund, we must do so. We also bear the risk of reject losses arising from the fact that we collect our fees from our
merchants on the first day after the monthly billing period. If the merchant has gone out of business during such period, we may be unable to
collect such fees. We maintain cash deposits or require the pledge of a letter of credit from certain merchants, generally those with higher
average transaction size where the card is not present when the charge is made or the product or service is delivered after the charge is made, in
order to offset potential contingent liabilities such as chargebacks and reject losses that would arise if the merchant went out of business. The
majority of merchant deposits held by the Company include funds in transit associated with debit processing and check processing in addition to
merchant funds held that are associated with bankcard processing. At June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, we held SME merchant deposits
totaling $28.4 million and $25.9 million, respectively. Most chargeback and reject losses are charged to processing and servicing as they are
incurred. However, we also maintain a loss reserve against losses including major fraud losses, which are both less predictable and involve
larger amounts. The loss reserve was established using historical loss rates, applied to recent bankcard processing volume. At June 30, 2010 and
December 31, 2009, our loss reserve totaled $1,467,000 and $1,336,000, respectively. Aggregate bankcard merchant losses, including losses
charged to operations and the loss reserve, were $5.6 million and $3.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively,
and were $5.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2009.

Chargebacks originating from large national merchant bankcard processing are processed and carried by Fifth Third Processing Solutions, which
is our third-party outsourced processor for settling large national merchant accounts.

Stock Options

We expense employee share-based payments under the fair value method. Share-based compensation cost is measured at the grant date, based on
the fair value of the award, and is recognized as expense over the requisite service period. Under the modified-prospective-transition method, we
are required to record compensation expense for all awards granted after the date of adoption using grant-date fair value estimate and for the
unvested portion of previously granted awards using the grant-date fair value estimate.

We estimate the grant date fair value of the stock options we issue using a Black-Scholes valuation model for �plain-vanilla� stock options and
performance-based stock options, and we use a Lattice valuation model to measure grant date fair value for stock options containing market
vesting conditions. Our assumption for expected volatility is based on our historical volatility for those option grants whose expected life fall
within a period we have sufficient historical volatility data related to market trading of our own Common Stock. For those option grants whose
expected life is longer than we had sufficient historical volatility data related to market trading of our own Common Stock, we determined an
expected volatility assumption by referencing the average volatility experienced by a group of our public company peers. For plain-vanilla stock
options, we estimate the expected life of a stock option based on the simplified method as provided by the staff of the SEC. The simplified
method is used because, at this point, we do not have sufficient historical information to develop reasonable expectations about future exercise
patterns. For the performance-based options, the expected life is estimated based on the average of three possible performance condition
outcomes. Our dividend yield assumption is based on dividends expected to be paid over the expected life of the stock option. Our risk-free
interest rate assumption for stock options granted is determined by using U.S. treasury rates of the same period as the expected option term of
each stock option.
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In the second quarter of 2009, our Board of Directors approved grants of 930,000 stock options subject to multiple vesting conditions. Under
these stock options, the employee must provide continuous service over four years and a market price condition must be satisfied within those
four years. These stock options have a five-year term and could vest in equal amounts in 2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013 only if during the four-year
service period, the price of our common stock as reported by the New York Stock Exchange exceeds two or three times the exercise price for 30
consecutive trading days. The grant date fair values of these multiple vesting condition options are recognized as compensation expense over
their four-year service periods.

We did not grant any stock options during the six months ended June 30, 2010. The weighted-average fair value of options we granted during
2009, 2008 and 2007 were $3.12, $6.11 and $7.64, respectively. The fair value of options granted during 2009, 2008 and 2007 was estimated at
the grant date using the following weighted average assumptions:

Year Ended December 31,
2009 2008 2007

Expected volatility 48% 35% 31% 
Expected life 3.75 to 4.0 years 2.5 to 4.0 years 2.5 to 3.75 years
Expected Dividends 0.47% 1.36% 0.90% 
Risk-free interest rate 1.76% 2.98% 4.29% 

In 2009, our Board of Directors approved grants of 362,600 Restricted Share Units. These Restricted Share Units are nonvested share awards
which will vest over a four-year service period. The closing price of our common stock on the grant date equals the grant date fair value of these
nonvested share awards and will be recognized as compensation expense over their four-year service periods.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of acquisition costs over the fair values of net assets acquired in business combinations. We recorded goodwill in
connection with our acquisitions of Debitek, Inc., E-Secure Peripherals, Inc., General Meters Corp., Collective Point of Sales Solutions Ltd.,
Network Services and Chockstone, Inc. Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually and between annual tests if an event occurs or
changes in circumstances suggest a potential decline in the fair value of the reporting unit. A significant amount of judgment is involved in
determining if an indicator or change in circumstances relating to impairment has occurred. Such changes may include, among others: a
significant decline in expected future cash flows; a sustained decline in market capitalization; a significant adverse change in legal factors or in
the business climate; unanticipated competition; and slower growth rates. We perform annual goodwill impairment testing in the fourth quarter.
Our evaluation indicated that no impairment exists as of December 31, 2009 or 2008. At June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, goodwill of
$61.5 million and $61.0 million, respectively, was recorded on our Consolidated Balance Sheet. We may be required to record goodwill
impairment losses in future periods, whether in connection with our next annual impairment testing in the fourth quarter of 2010 or prior to that,
if any such indicators constitute a triggering event in other than the quarter in which the annual goodwill impairment test is performed. It is not
possible at this time to determine if any such future impairment loss would result or, if it does, whether such charge would be material.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes by recognizing deferred tax assets and liabilities, which are recorded to reflect the future tax consequences
attributable to the effects of differences between the carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities for financial reporting and for income tax
purposes. Judgments are required in determining the amount and probability of future taxable income, which in turn is critical to a determination
of whether a valuation reserve against the deferred tax asset is appropriate.

We also account for the recognition and measurement of tax benefits associated with uncertain tax positions. This requires evaluations of
individual tax positions to determine whether any part of that position can be recognized or continues to be recognized in the financial
statements. An uncertain tax position exists if it is unclear how a transaction will be treated under tax law. At June 30, 2010, our reserve for
unrecognized tax benefits related to uncertain tax positions was $1.4 million.
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We have not recorded any unrecognized tax benefits that would be reasonably possible to significantly increase or decrease within 12 months of
the reporting date. As of June 30, 2010, a total of $0.9 million unrecognized tax benefit would, if recognized, impact the effective tax rate.

Results of Operations

Three Months Ended June 30, 2010 Compared to Three Months Ended June 30, 2009

The following table shows certain income statement data as a percentage of revenue for the periods indicated (in thousands of dollars):

Three 
Months
Ended

June 30,
2010

% of Total
Revenue

Three 
Months
Ended

June 30,
2009

% of Total
Revenue

Change

Amount %
Total Revenues $ 475,881 100.0% $ 417,373 100.0% $ 58,508 14.0% 
Costs of Services:
Interchange 330,735 69.5% 291,235 69.8% 39,500 13.6% 
Dues, assessments and fees 30,004 6.3% 19,586 4.7% 10,418 53.2% 
Processing and servicing 59,322 12.5% 49,866 11.9% 9,456 19.0% 
Customer acquisition costs 12,820 2.7% 12,757 3.1% 63 0.5% 
Depreciation and amortization 3,756 0.8% 3,874 0.9% (118) (3.0)% 

Total costs of services 436,637 91.8% 377,318 90.4% 59,319 15.7% 
General and administrative 24,094 5.1% 24,430 5.9% (336) (1.4)% 

Total expenses 460,731 96.8% 401,748 96.3% 58,983 14.7% 

Income from operations 15,150 3.2% 15,625 3.7% (475) (3.0)% 

Other income (expense):
Interest income 37 �  28 �  9 32.1% 
Interest expense (1,170) (0.2)% (545) (0.1)% (625) 114.7% 
(Provision for) recovery of processing system
intrusion costs (4,854) (1.0)% (19,380) (4.6)% 14,526 (75.0)% 
Other, net 1,075 0.2% 2 �  1,073

Total other income (expense) (4,912) (1.0)% (19,895) (4.8)% 14,983 (75.3)% 

Income (loss) before income taxes 10,238 2.2% (4,270) (1.0)% 14,508
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes 4,064 0.9% (1,669) (0.4)% 5,733

Net income (loss) 6,174 1.3% (2,601) (0.6)% 8,775
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrolling
interests 31 14 17

Net income (loss) attributable to Heartland $ 6,143 1.3% $ (2,615) (0.6)% $ 8,758

Total Revenues. Total revenues increased by 14.0% from $417.4 million in the three months ended June 30, 2009 to $475.9 million in the three
months ended June 30, 2010, primarily as a result of a $56.2 million, or 13.8%, increase in processing revenues. The breakout of our total
revenues for the three months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 was as follows (in thousands of dollars):
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Three Months Ended
June 30,

Change from
Prior Year

2010 2009 Amount %
Processing revenues, gross (a) $ 463,066 $ 406,861 $ 56,205 13.8% 
Payroll processing revenues 3,892 3,471 421 12.1% 
Equipment-related income 8,923 7,041 1,882 26.7% 

Total Revenues $ 475,881 $ 417,373 $ 58,508 14.0% 

(a) Includes Visa, MasterCard, AMEX and Discover bankcard processing revenues, AMEX fees, Discover fees, check processing fees,
customer service fees, gift card, loyalty and other miscellaneous revenue.

The $56.2 million increase in processing revenues from $406.9 million in the three months ended June 30, 2009 to $463.1 million in the three
months ended June 30, 2010 was primarily due to higher SME merchant card processing revenues. Revenues from our SME bankcard
processing increased due to higher

37

Edgar Filing: HEARTLAND PAYMENT SYSTEMS INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 59



Table of Contents

SME bankcard processing volume. For the three months ended June 30, 2010, our SME bankcard processing volume increased 8.0% to $16.3
billion, compared to $15.1 billion for the three months ended June 30, 2009. American Express and Discover processing volume contributed
over 50% of this increase. Network Services increased its bankcard processing revenues on the 124 million transactions it settled, representing
$2.9 billion in processing volume, and the 675 million transactions it authorized through its front-end card processing systems during the three
months ended June 30, 2010, compared to 122 million transactions it settled, representing $2.6 billion in processing volume, and the 606 million
transactions it authorized through its front-end card processing systems during the three months ended June 30, 2009. The increase in Network
Services� bankcard processing revenues was primarily due to increases in Visa and MasterCard bankcard transaction authorization fees, which
we pass through to our merchants, partially offset by reductions in gross processing revenues due to renegotiations of customer contracts. We
report Network Services� settled bankcard processing revenues net of credit interchange and dues and assessments because the daily cash
settlement with Network Services� merchants is on a net basis.

Payroll processing revenues, which include fees earned on payroll processing services and interest income earned on funds held for customers,
increased by 12.1%, from $3.5 million in the three months ended June 30, 2009 to $3.9 million in the three months ended June 30, 2010,
primarily due to the 19.6% increase in the number of payroll processing customers from 8,887 at June 30, 2009 to 10,632 at June 30, 2010,
partially offset by the impact of a reduction in the average number of employees at our customers.

Equipment-related income increased by 26.7% from $7.0 million in the three months ended June 30, 2009 to $8.9 million in the three months
ended June 30, 2010, primarily due to increases in revenues from the laundry vertical in our prepaid and stored-value card business at our
Debitek subsidiary.

Costs of services. Costs of services increased 15.7% from $377.3 million in the three months ended June 30, 2009 to $436.6 million in the three
months ended June 30, 2010, due primarily to increases in interchange fees, dues, assessments and fees, and processing and servicing expense.
Costs of services represented 91.8% of total revenues in the three months ended June 30, 2010, up from 90.4% in the three months ended
June 30, 2009.

Interchange fees increased 13.6% from $291.2 million in the three months ended June 30, 2009 to $330.7 million in the three months ended
June 30, 2010, and represented 69.5% of total revenues in the three months ended June 30, 2010 compared to 69.8% in the three months ended
June 30, 2009. The increase in interchange fees was primarily due to higher SME bankcard processing volume in the three months ended
June 30, 2010.

Dues, assessments and fees increased 53.2% from $19.6 million in the three months ended June 30, 2009 to $30.0 million in the three months
ended June 30, 2010, primarily as a result of an increase in Visa bankcard transaction authorization fees in July 2009, and also due to higher
SME bankcard processing volume. Dues, assessments and fees were 6.3% of total revenues in the three months ended June 30, 2010, compared
to 4.7% in the three months ended June 30, 2009.

Net revenue, which we define as total revenues less interchange fees and dues, assessments and fees, increased 8.1% from $106.6 million in the
three months ended June 30, 2009, to $115.1 million in the three months ended June 30, 2010. The increase in net revenue was driven primarily
by increases in SME bankcard processing volume and equipment-related revenues. Net revenue for Network services declined in the three
months ended June 30, 2010 primarily due to renegotiations of customer contracts.

Processing and servicing expense for the three months ended June 30, 2010 increased by $9.5 million, or 19.0%, compared with the three
months ended June 30, 2009. The increase in processing and servicing expense was due to costs associated with processing the higher SME
bankcard processing volume, including increased commission expense, increased costs of sales related to the higher equipment-related revenues,
costs of investments we have made in enhancing our processing systems, and an increase in the cost of support personnel, particularly account
managers. As a percentage of total revenue, processing and servicing expense increased to 12.5% for the three months ended June 30, 2010
compared with 11.9% for the three months ended June 30, 2009. Transactions processed on HPS Exchange represented approximately 90%
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of our total SME processing transactions during the three months ended June 30, 2010, compared to 87% during the three months ended June 30,
2009.

Customer acquisition costs were flat at $12.8 million in the three months ended June 30, 2009 and the three months ended June 30, 2010.
Customer acquisition costs for the three months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 included the following components (in thousands of dollars):

Three Months Ended
June 30,

2010 2009
Amortization of signing bonuses, net $ 9,505 $ 10,335
Amortization of capitalized customer deferred acquisition costs 4,059 3,987
Increase in accrued buyout liability 3,172 2,694
Capitalized customer deferred acquisition costs (3,916) (4,259) 

Total Customer Acquisition Costs $ 12,820 $ 12,757

Depreciation and amortization expenses decreased 3.0% from $3.9 million in the three months ended June 30, 2009 to $3.8 million in the three
months ended June 30, 2010. Most of our investments in information technology have been for security-related enhancements and in support of
the continuing development of HPS Exchange, Passport and other processing-related initiatives. Depreciation and amortization expense recorded
on these investments is included in processing and servicing expense. Additionally, we capitalized salaries, fringe benefits and other expenses
incurred by employees that worked on internally developed software projects and outsourced programming. Amortization does not begin on the
internally developed software until the project is complete and placed in service, at which time we begin to amortize the asset over expected
lives of three to five years. The amount capitalized increased from $3.3 million in the three months ended June 30, 2009 to $4.0 million in the
three months ended June 30, 2010. The total amount of capitalized costs for projects placed in service in the three months ended June 30, 2010
and 2009 was $3.0 million and $2.1 million, respectively.

General and administrative. General and administrative expenses decreased $0.3 million, or 1.4%, from $24.4 million in the three months ended
June 30, 2009 to $24.1 million in the three months ended June 30, 2010, primarily due to a decrease in expenses related to holding our periodic
sales and servicing organization summit, which focuses on the training and development of our organization. In 2010, we held our periodic sales
and servicing organization summit in the first quarter, while in 2009 we held the summit in the second quarter. General and administrative
expenses as a percentage of total revenue for the three months ended June 30, 2010 was 5.1%, a decrease from 5.9% for the three months ended
June 30, 2009.

Income from operations. Our income from operations, which we also refer to as operating income, declined to $15.2 million for the three months
ended June 30, 2010, from $15.6 million for the three months ended June 30, 2009. This decline was primarily due to the continuing limiting
effect which economic conditions had on growth in our net revenues, and to increases in processing and servicing expense. Our operating
margin, which we measure as operating income divided by net revenue, was 13.2% for the three months ended June 30, 2010, compared to
14.7% for the three months ended June 30, 2009.

Interest expense. Interest expense for the three months ended June 30, 2010 of $1.2 million increased from $545,000 for the three months ended
June 30, 2009. The increase in interest expense for the three months ended June 30, 2010 was due to higher interest rates incurred on our
borrowings under our Amended and Restated Credit Agreement and increased borrowings under our Amended and Restated Credit Agreement
and Bridge Loan. This was offset slightly by decreased interest expense on lower average payables to our sponsor banks. Interest expense for the
three months ended June 30, 2010 included approximately $0.5 million related to borrowings we incurred to fund the settlement with Visa in
February 2010 (see ��Overview�Processing System Intrusion� for more detail). See ��Liquidity and Capital Resources�Credit Facility� for more detail
on our borrowings. Interest expense which we recorded as payables to our sponsor banks resulted from our practice of having our sponsor banks
advance interchange fees to most of our SME merchants. Generally, when we have cash available for investment we fund these
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advances to our SME merchants first with our cash, then by incurring a payable to our sponsor banks when that cash has been expended. We pay
our sponsor banks the prime rate on these payables.

(Provision for) recovery of processing system intrusion costs. See ��Overview�Processing System Intrusion and �Critical Accounting
Estimates�Reserve for Processing System Intrusion� for more details on the Processing System Intrusion.

During the three months ended June 30, 2010, we recorded total expenses of $4.9 million, or $0.07 per share associated with the Processing
System Intrusion for accruals, legal fees and costs we incurred for investigations and defending various claims and actions. For the three months
ended June 30, 2009, we recorded total expenses of $19.4 million, or $0.32 per share, associated with the Processing System Intrusion.

Other income (expense), net. Other, net for the three months ended June 30, 2010 reflected a net legal settlement received during the period.

Income taxes. Income taxes for the three months ended June 30, 2010 were an expense of $4.1 million, reflecting an effective tax rate of 39.7%.
The effective rate for the three months ended June 30, 2010 reflects expense related to prior year true-ups to actual tax return filings. For the
three months ended June 30, 2009, we recorded an income tax benefit of $1.7 million, at an effective tax rate of 39.1%.

Net income (loss) attributable to Heartland. As a result of the above factors, we recorded net income of $6.1 million for the three months ended
June 30, 2010. This compares to a net loss of $2.6 million for the three months ended June 30, 2009.

Six Months Ended June 30, 2010 Compared to Six Months Ended June 30, 2009

The following table shows certain income statement data as a percentage of revenue for the periods indicated (in thousands of dollars):

Six 
Months
Ended

June 30,
2010

% of Total
Revenue

Six 
Months
Ended
June 30,
2009

% of Total
Revenue

Change

Amount %
Total Revenues $ 887,037 100.0% $ 789,545 100.0% $ 97,492 12.3% 
Costs of Services:
Interchange 611,785 69.0% 548,607 69.5% 63,178 11.5% 
Dues, assessments and fees 56,274 6.3% 35,866 4.5% 20,408 56.9% 
Processing and servicing 116,340 13.1% 97,922 12.4% 18,418 18.8% 
Customer acquisition costs 26,185 3.0% 25,332 3.2% 853 3.4% 
Depreciation and amortization 7,510 0.8% 7,608 1.0% (98) (1.3)% 

Total costs of services 818,094 92.2% 715,335 90.6% 102,759 14.4% 
General and administrative 51,194 5.8% 49,463 6.3% 1,731 3.5% 

Total expenses 869,288 98.0% 764,798 96.9% 104,490 13.7% 

Income from operations 17,749 2.0% 24,747 3.1% (6,998) (28.3)% 

Other income (expense):
Interest income 68 �  57 �  11 19.3% 
Interest expense (2,271) (0.3)% (1,086) (0.1)% (1,185) 109.1% 
(Provision for) recovery of processing system intrusion
costs 15,510 1.7% (31,970) (4.0)% 47,480 (148.5)% 
Other, net 2,020 0.2% 4 �  2,016

Total other income (expense) 15,327 1.7% (32,995) (4.2)% 48,322

Income (loss) before income taxes 33,076 3.7% (8,248) (1.0)% 41,324
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Provision for (benefit from) income taxes 12,658 1.4% (3,170) (0.4)% 15,828

Net income (loss) 20,418 2.3% (5,078) (0.6)% 25,496
Less: Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling
interests 47 (8) 55

Net income (loss) attributable to Heartland $ 20,371 2.3% $ (5,070) (0.6)% $ 25,441

Total Revenues. Total revenues increased by 12.3% from $789.5 million in the six months ended June 30, 2009 to $887.0 million in the six
months ended June 30, 2010, primarily as a result of a $93.2
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million, or 12.1%, increase in processing revenues. The breakout of our total revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 was as
follows (in thousands of dollars):

Six Months Ended
June 30,

Change from
Prior Year

2010 2009 Amount %
Processing revenues, gross (a) $ 862,285 $ 769,113 $ 93,172 12.1% 
Payroll processing revenues 8,835 7,899 936 11.8% 
Equipment-related income 15,917 12,533 3,384 27.0% 

Total Revenues $ 887,037 $ 789,545 $ 97,492 12.3% 

(a) Includes Visa, MasterCard, AMEX and Discover bankcard processing revenues, AMEX fees, Discover fees, check processing fees,
customer service fees, gift card, loyalty and other miscellaneous revenue.

The $93.2 million increase in processing revenues from $769.1 million in the six months ended June 30, 2009 to $862.3 million in the six
months ended June 30, 2010 was primarily due to higher SME merchant card processing revenues. Revenues from our SME bankcard
processing increased due to higher SME bankcard processing volume. For the six months ended June 30, 2010, our SME bankcard processing
volume increased 7.6% to $30.7 billion, compared to $28.6 billion for the six months ended June 30, 2009. American Express and Discover
processing volume contributed over half of this year-over-year increase. Network Services increased its bankcard processing revenues on the
232 million transactions it settled, representing $5.4 billion in processing volume, and the 1,253 million transactions it authorized through its
front-end card processing systems during the six months ended June 30, 2010, compared to 227 million transactions it settled, representing $4.6
billion in processing volume, and the 1,142 million transactions it authorized through its front-end card processing systems during the six
months ended June 30, 2009. The increase in Network Services� bankcard processing revenues was primarily due to increases in Visa and
MasterCard bankcard transaction authorization fees, which we pass through to our merchants, partially offset by reductions in gross processing
revenues due to renegotiations of customer contracts. We report Network Services� settled bankcard processing revenues net of credit interchange
and dues and assessments because the daily cash settlement with Network Services� merchants is on a net basis.

Payroll processing revenues, which include fees earned on payroll processing services and interest income earned on funds held for customers,
increased by 11.8%, from $7.9 million in the six months ended June 30, 2009 to $8.8 million in the six months ended June 30, 2010, primarily
due to the 19.6% increase in the number of payroll processing customers from 8,887 at June 30, 2009 to 10,632 at June 30, 2010, partially offset
by the impact of a reduction in the average number of employees at our customers.

Equipment-related income increased by 27.0% from $12.5 million in the six months ended June 30, 2009 to $15.9 million in the six months
ended June 30, 2010, primarily due to increases in revenues from the laundry vertical in our prepaid and stored-value card business at our
Debitek subsidiary.

Costs of services. Costs of services increased 14.4% from $715.3 million in the six months ended June 30, 2009 to $818.1 million in the six
months ended June 30, 2010, due primarily to increases in interchange fees, dues, assessments and fees, and processing and servicing expense.
Costs of services represented 92.2% of total revenues in the six months ended June 30, 2010, up from 90.6% in the six months ended June 30,
2009.

Interchange fees increased 11.5% from $548.6 million in the six months ended June 30, 2009 to $611.8 million in the six months ended June 30,
2010, and represented 69.0% of total revenues in the six months ended June 30, 2010 compared to 69.5% in the six months ended June 30, 2009.
The increase in interchange fees was primarily due to higher SME bankcard processing volume in the six months ended June 30, 2010.

Dues, assessments and fees increased 56.9% from $35.9 million in the six months ended June 30, 2009 to $56.3 million in the six months ended
June 30, 2010, primarily as a result of increases in MasterCard and Visa bankcard transaction authorization fees during 2009, and also due to
higher SME bankcard processing volume. Dues, assessments and fees were 6.3% of total revenues in the six months ended June 30, 2010,
compared to 4.5% in the six months ended June 30, 2009.
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Net revenue, which we define as total revenues less interchange fees and dues, assessments and fees, increased 6.8% from $205.1 million in the
six months ended June 30, 2009, to $219.0 million in the six months ended June 30, 2010. The increase in net revenue was driven primarily by
increases in SME bankcard processing volume and equipment-related revenues. Net revenue for Network services declined in the six months
ended June 30, 2010 primarily due to renegotiations of customer contracts.

Processing and servicing expense for the six months ended June 30, 2010 increased by $18.4 million, or 18.8%, compared with the six months
ended June 30, 2009. The increase in processing and servicing expense was due to costs associated with processing the higher SME bankcard
processing volume, increased costs of sales related to the higher payroll and equipment-related revenues as well as phone card and loyalty and
gift related revenues, costs of investments we have made in enhancing our processing systems, an increase in the amount of merchant losses and
increases in the costs of operating our service centers, particularly the costs of support personnel, including account managers and depreciation
and amortization. As a percentage of total revenue, processing and servicing expense increased to 13.1% for the six months ended June 30, 2010
compared with 12.4% for the six months ended June 30, 2009. Transactions processed on HPS Exchange represented approximately 90% of our
total SME processing transactions during the six months ended June 30, 2010, compared to 87% during the six months ended June 30, 2009.

Customer acquisition costs increased 3.4% from $25.3 million in the six months ended June 30, 2009 to $26.2 million in the six months ended
June 30, 2010. The increase in customer acquisition costs was primarily due to a higher rate of increase in the accrued buyout liability in the six
months ended June 30, 2010. This increase is attributable to new merchants added since June 30, 2009 and lower same store sales contraction in
the six months ended June 30, 2010. Customer acquisition costs for the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 included the following
components (in thousands of dollars):

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2010 2009
Amortization of signing bonuses, net $ 19,478 $ 20,614
Amortization of capitalized customer deferred acquisition costs 8,134 7,837
Increase in accrued buyout liability 6,299 5,076
Capitalized customer deferred acquisition costs (7,726) (8,195) 

Total Customer Acquisition Costs $ 26,185 $ 25,332

Depreciation and amortization expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2010 were relatively unchanged from the six months ended June 30,
2009. Most of our investments in information technology have been for security-related enhancements and in support of the continuing
development of HPS Exchange, Passport and other processing-related initiatives. Depreciation and amortization expense recorded on these
investments is included in processing and servicing expense. Additionally, we capitalized salaries, fringe benefits and other expenses incurred by
employees that worked on internally developed software projects and outsourced programming. Amortization does not begin on the internally
developed software until the project is complete and placed in service, at which time we begin to amortize the asset over expected lives of three
to five years. The amount capitalized increased from $6.2 million in the six months ended June 30, 2009 to $6.5 million in the six months ended
June 30, 2010. The total amount of capitalized costs for projects placed in service in the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 was $6.1
million and $3.6 million, respectively.

General and administrative. General and administrative expenses increased 3.5%, from $49.5 million in the six months ended June 30, 2009 to
$51.2 million in the six months ended June 30, 2010. This increase was primarily due to a $1.7 million increase in stock compensation expense.
General and administrative expenses as a percentage of total revenue for the six months ended June 30, 2010 was 5.8%, a decrease from 6.3%
for the six months ended June 30, 2009.

Income from operations. Our income from operations, which we also refer to as operating income, declined to $17.7 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2010, from $24.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2009. This decline was primarily due to the continuing limiting
effect which economic conditions had on growth in our net revenues, and to increases in processing and servicing expenses. Our
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operating margin, which we measure as operating income divided by net revenue, was 8.1% for the six months ended June 30, 2010, compared
to 12.1% for the six months ended June 30, 2009.

Interest expense. Interest expense for the six months ended June 30, 2010 of $2.3 million increased from $1.1 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2009. The increase in interest expense for the six months ended June 30, 2010 was due to higher interest rates incurred on our
borrowings under our Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, increased borrowings under our Amended and Restated Credit Agreement and
Bridge Loan, and higher average payables to our sponsor banks. Interest expense for the six months ended June 30, 2010 included approximately
$0.7 million related to borrowings we incurred to fund the settlement with Visa in February 2010 (see �� Overview � Processing System Intrusion�
for more detail). See �� Liquidity and Capital Resources � Credit Facility� for more detail on our borrowings. Interest expense which we recorded as
payables to our sponsor banks resulted from our practice of having our sponsor banks advance interchange fees to most of our SME merchants.
Generally, when we have cash available for investment we fund these advances to our SME merchants first with our cash, then by incurring a
payable to our sponsor banks when that cash has been expended. We pay our sponsor banks the prime rate on these payables.

(Provision for) recovery of processing system intrusion costs. See �� Overview � Processing System Intrusion and � Critical Accounting Estimates �
Reserve for Processing System Intrusion� for more details on the Processing System Intrusion.

During the six months ended June 30, 2010, we recovered from our insurance providers approximately $26.8 million of the costs we incurred for
the Processing System Intrusion and expensed approximately $11.3 million for accruals, legal fees and costs we incurred for investigations and
defending various claims and actions, for a net recovery of $15.5 million, or $0.24 per share. For the six months ended June 30, 2009, we
recorded total expenses of $32.0 million, or $0.53 per share, associated with the Processing System Intrusion.

Other income (expense), net. Other, net for the six months ended June 30, 2010 reflected a net legal settlement received during the period.

Income taxes. Income taxes for the six months ended June 30, 2010 were an expense of $12.7 million, reflecting an effective tax rate of 38.3%.
This compares to income tax benefit of $3.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2009, reflecting an effective tax rate of 38.4%.

Net income (loss) attributable to Heartland. As a result of the above factors, we recorded net income of $20.4 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2010. This compares to a net loss of $5.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2009.
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Balance Sheet Information

June 30,
2010

December 31,
2009

(in thousands)
Selected Balance Sheet Data

Cash $ 44,976 $ 32,113
Funds held for payroll customers 26,065 29,667
Receivables, net 167,367 149,403
Current tax asset 16,329 16,266
Current deferred tax asset 22,714 42,760
Capitalized customer acquisition costs, net 63,555 72,038
Property and equipment, net 100,589 99,989
Goodwill 61,492 60,962
Intangible assets 31,966 34,637
Total assets 555,491 562,206

Due to sponsor banks 56,146 80,007
Accounts payable 35,838 32,305
Deposits held for payroll customers 26,065 29,667
Borrowings:
Current portion 111,516 58,547
Long term portion 4,174 8,419
Accrued buyout liability:
Current portion 8,852 9,306
Long term portion 37,066 33,580
Reserve for Processing System Intrusion 42,282 99,911
Total liabilities 398,504 432,251
Total stockholders� equity 156,726 129,741

June 30, 2010 Compared to December 31, 2009

Total assets decreased $6.7 million, or 1.2%, to $555.5 million at June 30, 2010 from $562.2 million at December 31, 2009, primarily due to
decreases in current deferred tax assets, capitalized customer acquisition costs, and funds held for payroll customers. Current deferred tax assets
decreased $20.1 million to $22.7 million at June 30, 2010. The reduction in current deferred tax assets primarily resulted from the payment of
the settlement with Visa (see �� Overview � Processing System Intrusion� for more detail). The payment of the settlement with Visa was also the
primary reason for the $57.6 million decrease in our Reserve for Processing System Intrusion. Capitalized customer acquisition costs decreased
by $8.5 million, or 11.8%, primarily reflecting a decline in the amount of signing bonuses paid due to the decrease in gross margin installed. A
$3.6 million decrease in funds held for payroll customers was offset by an equal decrease in deposits held for payroll customers.

Our receivables, which increased $18.0 million or 12.0% from December 31, 2009, are primarily due from our bankcard processing merchants
and result from our practice of advancing interchange fees to most of our SME merchants during the month and collecting those fees from our
merchants at the beginning of the following month, as well as from transaction fees we charge merchants for processing transactions. Generally,
these advances to our SME merchants are funded first with our cash available for investment, then by incurring a payable to our sponsor banks
when that cash has been expended. At June 30, 2010, we used $57.2 million of available cash to fund merchant advances and at December 31,
2009, we used $7.0 million of cash to fund merchant advances. The amount due to sponsor banks for funding advances was $36.4 million at
June 30, 2010 and $73.2 million at December 31, 2009. The payable to sponsor banks is repaid at the beginning of the following month out of
the fees we collect from our merchants. Receivables from merchants also include receivables from the sale of point of sale terminal equipment
and check processing terminals.
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Receivables also include amounts resulting from the sale, installation, training and repair of payment system hardware and software for prepaid
card and stored-value card payment systems and campus payment solutions.

Current borrowings increased $53.0 million, or 90.5%, to $111.5 million at June 30, 2010 from $58.5 million at December 31, 2009, due to our
January 7, 2010 Settlement Agreement with Visa and that Settlement Agreement�s condition that we obtain a loan of at least $53.0 million from
Sponsor Banks, the proceeds of which were to be used to fund the settlement amount. See �� Overview � Provision for Processing System Intrusion�
and �� Liquidity and Capital Resources� for discussion of the Settlement Agreement, the Bridge Loan and the Increased Credit Commitment.

Total stockholders� equity increased $27.0 million from December 31, 2009 primarily due to recording net income of $20.4 million for the six
months ended June 30, 2010, including net pre-tax insurance recoveries of $26.8 million related to the Processing System Intrusion. Other
increases in total stockholders� equity for the six months ended June 30, 2010 included proceeds received from the exercise of stock options and
tax benefits related to those stock option exercises.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

General. Liquidity and capital resource management is a process focused on providing the funding we need to meet our short and long-term
cash and working capital needs. We have used our funding sources to build our merchant portfolio, our servicing technology platforms, and our
Jeffersonville, Indiana service center with the expectation that these investments will generate cash flows sufficient to cover our working capital
needs and other anticipated needs for capital.

Our cash requirements include funding payments to salespersons for signing bonuses, residual commissions and residual buyouts, paying
interest expense and other operating expenses, including taxes, constructing our primary service center and investing in building our technology
infrastructure. We expect that our future cash requirements will continue to include amounts required to defend against claims arising from the
Processing System Intrusion and such costs could be material. At times, we have used cash to repurchase our common stock. We could in the
future use cash for other unspecified acquisitions of businesses or assets.

Other than borrowings we used to fund our May 2008 acquisition of Network Services and our settlement with Visa, we fund our cash needs
primarily with cash flow from our operating activities and through our agreements with our sponsor banks to fund SME merchant advances. We
believe that our current cash and investment balances, cash generated from operations and our agreements with our sponsor banks to fund SME
merchant advances will provide sufficient liquidity to meet our anticipated needs for operating capital for at least the next twelve months.
However, we may face a liquidity challenge if we are unable to meet cash requirements arising from the Processing System Intrusion from our
operating cash flow, replace our current Credit Facility with a new arrangement, or refinance the Bridge Loan. See �� Overview � Processing
System Intrusion� for more detail. We cannot provide assurance that we will be able to replace our current Credit Facility with a new arrangement
or refinance the Bridge Loan in order to meet any liquidity challenges we may face.

On December 17, 2009, we entered into a settlement agreement and release with American Express to resolve potential claims and other
disputes among us and American Express (and its issuers) with respect to the Processing System Intrusion, and subsequently paid approximately
$3.5 million in full and final satisfaction of any and all claims of American Express and its issuers arising from or relating to the Processing
System Intrusion. Such settlement agreement and release contains mutual releases by and between us and American Express (on behalf of itself
and its issuers) relating to the Processing System Intrusion.

On January 7, 2010, we, Heartland Bank, KeyBank National Association (�KeyBank,� and, together with Heartland Bank, the �Sponsor Banks�),
and Visa U.S.A. Inc., Visa International Service Association and Visa Inc. (collectively, �Visa�) entered into a settlement agreement (the
�Settlement Agreement�) to resolve potential claims and other disputes among us, the Sponsor Banks and Visa with respect to the potential rights
and claims of Visa and certain issuers of Visa-branded credit and debit cards related to the Processing System
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Intrusion. After credit for fines previously collected by Visa during 2009, the settlement amount paid under the Settlement Agreement was $59.3
million. We had included costs of this settlement in our Provision for Processing System Intrusion on our Consolidated Statement of Operations
for the year ended December 31, 2009 and in our Reserve for Processing System Intrusion on the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of
December 31, 2009.

A condition of the Settlement Agreement was that we obtain a loan of at least $53.0 million from the Sponsor Banks, the proceeds of which
were to be used to partially fund the settlement amount. See �� Credit Facilities� for a discussion of our $28.0 million Bridge Loan and our $25.0
million Increased Credit Commitment, both entered into on February 18, 2010. We used the proceeds of the Bridge Loan and the Increased
Credit Commitment, together with a portion of our cash reserves, to fund the settlement with Visa. The Settlement Agreement was consummated
on February 18, 2010.

On May 19, 2010, we entered into a settlement agreement with MasterCard Worldwide (the �MasterCard Settlement Agreement�) to resolve
potential claims and other disputes among the Company, the Sponsor Banks and MasterCard related to the Processing System Intrusion. Under
the MasterCard Settlement Agreement, alternative recovery offers totaling $41.4 million were made to eligible MasterCard issuers with respect
to losses alleged to have been incurred by them as a result of the Processing System Intrusion. The $41.4 million includes a $6.6 million credit
for fines previously collected by MasterCard during 2009, so the maximum further amount we expect to pay under the MasterCard Settlement
Agreement is $34.8 million. Payment of the final settlement amount is expected late in the third quarter of 2010, although consummation of the
settlement is subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions described in our Current Report on Form 8-K, which we filed on May 19, 2010, and
set forth in the MasterCard Settlement Agreement, which is filed as Exhibit 10.1 to such Form 8-K. We anticipate making this settlement
payment out of available cash balances.

On June 30, 2010, we were fully borrowed on our existing credit facilities. See �� Credit Facilities� for more details.

Our working capital, defined as current assets less current liabilities, was negative by $41.0 million at June 30, 2010 primarily due to the
following: (i) our $42.3 million of Reserves for Processing System Intrusion, which remains unpaid at June 30, 2010, (ii) our Revolving Credit
Facility, which expires on September 4, 2012, with $75.0 million in borrowings classified as a current liability, and (iii) our $28.0 million Bridge
Loan, which is due on February 17, 2011 and is classified as a current liability. See �� Credit Facilities� for discussions of the Revolving Credit
Facility and the Bridge Loan. Management believes that this working capital deficiency will not cause illiquidity and that we will be able to
satisfy our obligations in the normal course because: (i) while we expect the $75.0 million Revolving Credit Facility may be refinanced, we have
the flexibility to defer its repayment until 2012, (ii) we expect the $28.0 million Bridge Loan to be refinanced, and (iii) the remaining $42.3
million Reserve for Processing System Intrusion could be paid from available cash. We cannot offer any assurance that we will be able to
refinance the Revolving Credit Facility or the Bridge Loan or retain cash for remaining settlements related to the Processing System Intrusion.

At June 30, 2010, we had cash on our Balance Sheet totaling $45.0 million compared to cash of $32.1 million at December 31, 2009 and $27.6
million at December 31, 2008. The increase in cash at June 30, 2010 was primarily due to recovering from our insurance providers
approximately $26.8 million of the costs we incurred for the Processing System Intrusion. Our June 30, 2010 cash balance included
approximately $29.8 million of processing-related cash in transit and collateral, compared to approximately $25.5 million of cash in transit and
collateral at December 31, 2009 and approximately $17.6 million of cash in transit and collateral at December 31, 2008. As of June 30, 2010, the
Company had used $57.2 million of its available cash to fund merchant advances and at December 31, 2009, the Company had used $7.0 million
of its cash to fund merchant advances.

2009 Acquisition. On July 31, 2009, we purchased for $3.2 million the existing Discover merchant portfolio, which we were already processing.
This purchase related to our 2008 agreement with DFS Services, LLC, which enables us to offer bankcard merchants a streamlined process that
enables them to accept
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Discover Network cards on our processing platforms. This asset is being amortized over the next 73 months in proportion to estimated future
cash flows.

Each funding source and use is described in more detail below.

Cash Flow (Used In) Provided By Operating Activities. We reported net cash used in operating activities of $29.9 million in the six months
ended June 30, 2010, compared to net cash provided by operating activities of $37.0 million in the six months ended June 30, 2009.

The primary reason for the negative operating cash flow for the six months ended June 30, 2010 was the payment of $58.6 million, which is
reflected in the reduction of our Reserve for Processing System Intrusion, for the settlement with Visa. The Settlement Agreement with Visa
required us to obtain a loan of at least $53.0 million from our Sponsor Banks, the proceeds of which were to be used to fund the settlement
amount (see �� Overview � Processing System Intrusion� for more detail). The $53.0 million of proceeds from the loans we obtained from our
Sponsor Banks are included in Cash Flow Provided by Financing Activities (See �� Cash Flow Provided By (Used In) Financing Activities).
Partially offsetting the impact of the Visa settlement on our operating cash flow for the six months ended June 30, 2010 was approximately
$26.8 million of cash we recovered from our insurance providers against certain costs we incurred for the Processing System Intrusion. Other
settlements we paid in the six months ended June 30, 2010 totaled $2.5 million. For the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, we paid $7.9
million and $16.1 million, respectively, for costs we incurred for legal fees and costs incurred for investigations, defending various claims and
actions, and crisis management services.

Other major determinants of operating cash flow are net signing bonus payments, which consume operating cash as we install new merchants,
and payouts on the accrued buyout liability, which represent the costs of buying out residual commissions owned by our salespersons. See ��
Critical Accounting Estimates � Capitalized Customer Acquisition Costs� and �� Critical Accounting Estimates � Accrued Buyout liability� for more
information. Net signing bonuses of $11.4 million and $17.8 million, respectively, were paid in the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009.
The reduction in net signing bonuses paid during the six months ended June 30, 2010 reflects a year-over-year decline in newly installed gross
margin. In the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, we reduced the accrued buyout liability by making buyout payments of $3.5 million
and $4.9 million, respectively.

Cash Flow Used In Investing Activities. Net cash used in investing activities was $10.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2010,
compared to $25.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2009. The amount of cash used in investing activities was lower during the six
months ended June 30, 2010 as we made capital expenditures of $10.6 million, compared to $25.2 million invested in the six months ended
June 30, 2009. Capital expenditures include costs of $1.1 million and $11.6 million in the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009,
respectively, related to the construction of our primary service center facility in Jeffersonville, Indiana. See �� Contractual Obligations� for more
detail regarding cumulative cash outlays and expected future funding requirements related to our primary service center. We also continued
building our technology infrastructure, primarily for hardware and software needed for the expansion of HPS Exchange and Passport. To further
develop our technology, we anticipate that these expenditures will continue near current levels. Additionally, our technology expenditures in
2009 were increased by measures we implemented after the Processing System Intrusion to further enhance the security of our computer system.

Cash Flow Provided By (Used In) Financing Activities. Net cash provided by financing activities was $53.2 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2010, compared to net cash used in financing activities of $7.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2009. Cash flow from
financing activities in the six months ended June 30, 2010 included the $53.0 million of proceeds from the loans we obtained from our Sponsor
Banks to use in funding the February 18, 2010 settlement with Visa (see �� Overview � Processing System Intrusion� for more detail).

During the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, we made term loan amortization payments of $4.2 million due under our Term Credit
facility. See �� Credit Facilities� for more details.

47

Edgar Filing: HEARTLAND PAYMENT SYSTEMS INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 71



Table of Contents

Cash dividends paid in the six months ended June 30, 2010 were $0.8 million, compared to dividends paid of $1.3 million in the six months
ended June 30, 2009. See �� Dividends on Common Stock� for more information on our common stock dividends. During the six months ended
June 30, 2010 and 2009, employees exercised stock options generating cash proceeds in the aggregate of $3.9 million and $0.5 million,
respectively.

Cash used in financing activities in the six month period ended June 30, 2009 included cash for common stock repurchases. See �� Common Stock
Repurchases� for more information on our common stock repurchases authorization. We used $3.2 million of cash to repurchase 350,400 shares
of our common stock during the six months ended June 30, 2009. No common stock was repurchased during the six months ended June 30,
2010.

Credit Facilities. On May 30, 2008, we entered into an amended and restated credit agreement (the �Amended and Restated Credit Agreement�)
with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, and certain lenders who may become a party to the Credit Agreement from time to
time. The Amended and Restated Credit Agreement amended and restated in its entirety the previous credit agreement entered into on
September 5, 2007 between the same parties that are parties to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement. On August 3, 2009, we amended
the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement to exclude a certain amount of charges related to the Processing System Intrusion that may be
incurred or accrued by us in determining our compliance with the financial covenants of the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, provide
the lenders with a security interest in the assets of the Company, and increase the interest margin charged on borrowings.

The Amended and Restated Credit Agreement provides for a revolving credit facility in the aggregate amount of up to $50 million (the
�Revolving Credit Facility�), of which up to $5 million may be used for the issuance of letters of credit and up to $5 million is available for swing
line loans. Upon the prior approval of the administrative agent, the Company was able to increase the total commitments by $25 million for a
total commitment under the Revolving Credit Facility of $75 million. On February 18, 2010, the Company entered into a Commitment Increase
Agreement (the �Commitment Increase Agreement�) with KeyBank as one of the lenders under the Revolving Credit Facility to increase the total
commitment under the Revolving Credit Facility by $25 million (the �Increased Credit Commitment�). The terms of the Increased Credit
Commitment are identical to the terms of the Revolving Credit Facility. The Revolving Credit Facility is available to the Company on a
revolving basis until September 4, 2012.

The Amended and Restated Credit Agreement also provides for a term credit facility in the aggregate amount of up to $25 million (the �Term
Credit Facility�). The Term Credit Facility requires amortizing payments in the amount of $2,083,333 on the last business day of each fiscal
quarter commencing March 31, 2009. All principal and interest not previously paid on the Term Credit Facility will mature and be due and
payable on December 31, 2011. Amounts borrowed and repaid under the Term Credit Facility may not be re-borrowed.

The Amended and Restated Credit Agreement contains covenants, which include our maintenance of certain leverage and fixed charge coverage
ratios, limitations on our indebtedness, liens on our properties and assets, our investments in, and loans to, other business units, our ability to
enter into business combinations and asset sales, and certain other financial and non-financial covenants. These covenants also apply to certain
of our subsidiaries. We were in compliance with these covenants as of June 30, 2010. Under the terms of the Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement, we may borrow, at our option, at interest rates equal to one, two, three or nine month adjusted LIBOR rates or equal to the greater of
prime and the federal funds rate plus 0.50%, in each case plus a margin determined by our current leverage ratio.

On February 18, 2010, the Company entered into a bridge loan agreement (the �Bridge Loan Agreement�) with KeyBank, as administrative agent,
and KeyBank and Heartland Bank as bridge lenders. On that date, KeyBank made a bridge loan to the Company in the amount of $20.0 million
and Heartland Bank made a bridge loan in the amount of $8.0 million (collectively, the �Bridge Loan�), which are the maximum amounts that the
Company may borrow under the Bridge Loan Agreement. The Company must repay the Bridge Loan by February 17, 2011. We may optionally
prepay the Bridge Loan at any time in whole or in part. However, we must prepay the Bridge Loan with any net cash proceeds from certain asset
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sales, the net cash proceeds of certain equity and debt issuances, and the net cash proceeds of certain recovery events.

The proceeds of the Bridge Loan and the Increased Credit Commitment, together with a portion of our cash reserves, were used to fund the
settlement with Visa. The Settlement Agreement was consummated on February 18, 2010, with a payment of $58.6 million.

At December 31, 2009, there was $50.0 million outstanding under the Revolving Credit Facility and $16.7 million outstanding under the Term
Credit Facility. At June 30, 2010, there was $75.0 million outstanding under the Revolving Credit Facility, $12.5 million outstanding under the
Term Credit Facility, and $28.0 million outstanding under the Bridge Loan.

Common Stock Repurchases. No common stock was repurchased during the six months ended June 30, 2010. During the six months ended
June 30, 2009, we repurchased 350,400 shares of our common stock at average per share costs of $9.14 under authorizations from our Board of
Directors. Under these authorizations, we repurchased an aggregate of 2,924,684 shares of common stock through June 30, 2010 at a cost of
$65.1 million, or an average cost of $22.25 per share. At June 30, 2010, the Company has remaining authorization to repurchase up to 175,316
additional shares of its common stock.

Dividends on Common Stock. The following table summarizes quarterly cash dividends declared and paid on our common stock during 2010
and 2009:

Date Declared Record Date Date Paid

Amount Paid
Per

Common
Share

Six Months Ended June 30, 2010:
February 18, 2010 March 5, 2010 March 15, 2010 $ 0.01
May 4, 2010 May 25, 2010 June 15, 2010 $ 0.01

Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2009:
February 20, 2009 March 9, 2009 March 16, 2009 $ 0.025
May 7, 2009 May 25, 2009 June 15, 2009 $ 0.01
August 3, 2009 August 25, 2009 September 15, 2009 $ 0.01
November 3, 2009 November 23, 2009 December 15, 2009 $ 0.01

On August 3, 2010, the Company�s Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.01 per share of common stock, payable on
September 15, 2010 to stockholders of record as of August 25, 2010.

Contractual Obligations. The card brand networks generally allow chargebacks up to four months after the later of the date the transaction is
processed or the delivery of the product or service to the cardholder. If the merchant incurring the chargeback is unable to fund the refund to the
card issuing bank, we must do so. As the majority of our SME transactions involve the delivery of the product or service at the time of the
transaction, a good basis to estimate our exposure to chargebacks is the last four months� bankcard processing volume on our SME portfolio,
which was $21.8 billion for the four months ended June 30, 2010 and $19.6 billion for the four months ended December 31, 2009. However,
during the four months ended June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, we were presented with $10.9 million and $11.1 million, respectively, of
chargebacks by issuing banks. In the six months ended June 30, 2010 and the 2009 full year, we incurred merchant credit losses of $5.6 million
and $5.9 million, respectively, on total SME bankcard dollar volumes processed of $31.0 billion and $59.0 billion, respectively. These credit
losses are included in processing and servicing expense in our consolidated statements of operations.

Chargebacks originating from large national merchant bankcard processing are processed and carried by Fifth Third Processing Solutions, which
is our third-party outsourced processor for settling large national merchant accounts.
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The following table reflects our significant contractual obligations as of June 30, 2010:

Payments Due by Period

Contractual Obligations Total
Less than
1 year

1 to 3
years

3 to 5
years

More than
5 years

(in thousands)
Processing providers (a) $ 10,462 $ 7,919 $ 2,176 $ 367 $ �  
Telecommunications providers 10,314 4,211 6,103 �  �  
Office and equipment leases 22,716 6,070 8,393 3,887 4,366
Term Loan Facility (b) 12,500 8,333 4,167 �  �  
Bridge Loan (c) 28,000 28,000 �  �  �  
Land, construction and equipment (d) 162 162 �  �  �  
Capital lease obligations 201 193 8 �  �  

$ 84,355 $ 54,888 $ 20,847 $ 4,254 $ 4,366

(a) We have agreements with several third-party processors to provide us on a non-exclusive basis payment processing and transmittal,
transaction authorization and data capture services, and access to various reporting tools. Our agreements with third-party processors
require us to submit a minimum monthly number of transactions or volume for processing. If we submit a number of transactions or
volume that is lower than the minimum, we are required to pay the third party processors the fees that they would have received if we had
submitted the required minimum number or volume of transactions.

(b) Interest rates on the Term Credit Facility are variable. If interest rates were to remain at the June 30, 2010 level, we would make interest
payments of $296,000 in the next 1 year and $50,000 in the next 1 to 3 years, or a total of $346,000. In addition, we have $75 million
outstanding under our Revolving Credit Facility at June 30, 2010. The Revolving Credit Facility is available on a revolving basis until
September 4, 2012.

(c) Interest rates on the Bridge Loan are variable. If interest rates were to remain at the June 30, 2010 level, we would make interest payments
of $655,000 in the next year.

(d) These amounts relate to contractual commitments we have for completing our primary service center in Jeffersonville, Indiana. Through
June 30, 2010, we have spent approximately $67.9 million of our cash on our primary service center, including $1.7 million to acquire
land. Construction of that facility commenced in 2006 and we completed 96,000 square feet of office space for Phase 1 of the primary
service center and opened it for operation in December 2007. In December 2008 our processing equipment deployment group moved into
a portion of an additional 125,000 square feet of multi-use space constructed on the site.

In addition, we record a payable to sponsor banks each month in conjunction with our monthly processing activities. This amount was $56.1
million as of June 30, 2010. This amount is repaid on the first business day of the following month out of the fees collected from our merchants.

Unrecognized Tax Benefits. At June 30, 2010, we had gross tax-effected unrecognized tax benefits of approximately $1.4 million. See �� Critical
Accounting Estimates � Income Taxes.� As of June 30, 2010 we are unable to make reasonably reliable estimates of the period of cash settlement
with the respective taxing authority, hence the unrecognized tax benefits have been excluded from the above commitment and contractual
obligations table.

Legal and Regulatory Considerations

Processing System Intrusion Legal Proceedings

To date, we have had several lawsuits filed against us and additional lawsuits may be filed. These include lawsuits which assert claims against us
by cardholders (including various putative class actions seeking in the aggregate to represent all cardholders in the United States whose
transaction information is alleged to have been placed at risk in the course of the Processing System Intrusion), and banks that issued payment
cards to cardholders whose transaction information is alleged to have been placed at risk in the course of the Processing System Intrusion
(including various putative class actions seeking to represent all financial institutions that issued payment cards to cardholders whose transaction
information is alleged to have been placed at risk in the course of the Processing System Intrusion), seeking damages allegedly arising out of the
Processing System Intrusion and other related relief. The actions generally assert various common-law claims such as claims for negligence and
breach of contract, as well as, in some cases, statutory claims such as violation of the Fair Credit Reporting Act, state data breach notification
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injunctive relief, multiple or punitive damages, attorneys� fees and costs. The putative financial institution class actions seek compensatory
damages, including recovery of the cost of issuance of replacement cards and losses by reason of unauthorized transactions, as well as injunctive
relief, attorneys� fees and costs.
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On June 10, 2009, the Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation (the �JPML�) entered an order centralizing the class action cases for pre-trial
proceedings before the United States District Court for the Southern District of Texas, under the caption In re Heartland Payment Systems, Inc.
Customer Data Security Breach Litigation, MDL No. 2046, 4:09-md-2046. On August 24, 2009, the court appointed interim co-lead and liaison
counsel for the financial institution and consumer plaintiffs. On September 23, 2009, the financial institution plaintiffs filed a Master Complaint
in the MDL proceedings, which we moved to dismiss on October 23, 2009. Briefing on that motion to dismiss concluded on February 1, 2010
and the motion remains pending. On December 18, 2009, we and interim counsel for the consumer plaintiffs filed with the Court a proposed
settlement agreement, subject to court approval, of the consumer class action claims. On May 3, 2010, the Court entered an order preliminarily
certifying the settlement class, authorizing notice to the class to proceed, and scheduling a fairness hearing for December 10, 2010. The putative
consumer class actions and putative financial institution class actions filed against us and pending through June 30, 2010 are described in �Legal
Proceedings�Processing System Intrusion Legal Proceedings.�

Other actions have been filed against us seeking damages allegedly arising out of the Processing System Intrusion and other related relief on an
individual basis. On October 14, 2009, the Clark County Indiana Teachers Federal Credit Union filed a complaint in the Clark Circuit Superior
Court of the State of Indiana. This action is captioned Clark County Indiana Teachers Federal Credit Union v. Heartland Payment Systems, Inc.,
Civ. No. 10D02-0910-LL-1209, and asserts claims for negligence and breach of contract. On April 12, 2010, we filed an answer to the
complaint. On July 30, 2010, the court entered an order staying the action until the MDL court rules on our motion to dismiss or until September
30, 2010, whichever occurs first. On December 28, 2009, Putnam Bank of Putnam, Connecticut filed a complaint in Connecticut Superior Court,
Putnam Bank v. Heartland Payment Systems, Inc., case no. WWM-CV-10-6001208-S. On January 20, 2010, we removed the action to the
United States District Court for the District of Connecticut, case no. 3:10-cv-0061 (JBA), and, on January 27, 2010, filed a Notice of Potential
Tag-Along Action, requesting centralization of the action with the MDL proceedings. On March 17, 2010, the action was centralized with the
MDL proceedings. On February 9, 2010, OmniAmerican Bank filed a complaint in the District Court for Collin County, Texas, Civ.
No. 380-00563-2012. The complaint identifies as a party in interest the Federal Insurance Company, which is alleged to have insured plaintiff
and reimbursed it for $1,005,077.50, less a $100,000 deductible. On March 15, 2010, we filed and answer to the complaint and removed the
action to the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Texas, case no. 4:10-cv-114, and, on March 16, 2010, filed a Notice of
Potential Tag-Along Action, requesting centralization of the action with the MDL proceedings. On April 29, 2010, the action was centralized
with the MDL proceedings. On February 18, 2010, Quad City Bank and Trust filed a complaint in the District Court for Collin County, Texas,
Civ. No. 380-00721-2010. The complaint identifies as a party in interest the Federal Insurance Company, which is alleged to have insured
plaintiff and reimbursed it for $432,420.32, less a $100,000 deductible. On March 15, 2010, we filed and answer to the complaint and removed
the action to the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Texas, case no. 4:10-cv-115 and, on March 16, 2010, filed a Notice of
Potential Tag-Along Action, requesting centralization of the action with the MDL proceedings. On April 29, 2010, the action was centralized
with the MDL proceedings. On May 5, 2010, Napus Federal Credit Union filed a complaint in the United States District Court for the Southern
District of Texas, case no. 4:10-cv-1616, and the action was consolidated with the MDL proceedings on June 9, 2010.

On January 19, 2010, financial institution plaintiffs, including certain of the named plaintiffs in the MDL proceedings, commenced an action
against our sponsor banks in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Texas, captioned Lonestar National Bank, N.A. et al. v.
KeyBank NA, et al., Civ. No. 4:10-cv-00171. This action against our sponsor banks asserts common-law claims similar to those asserted against
us, and likewise seeks to represent all financial institutions that issued payment cards to cardholders whose transaction information is alleged to
have been placed at risk in the course of the Processing System Intrusion. On March 4, 2010, this action was transferred to the judge
overseeing the MDL proceedings. On April 9, 2010, our sponsor banks moved to dismiss the complaint. Briefing on that motion to dismiss
concluded on June 7, 2010 and the motion remains pending. The sponsor banks could seek indemnification from us in regard to the claims
asserted in this action.

51

Edgar Filing: HEARTLAND PAYMENT SYSTEMS INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 76



Table of Contents

We have been advised by the SEC that it has commenced an informal inquiry and we have been advised by the United States Attorney for the
District of New Jersey that it has commenced an investigation, in each case to determine whether there have been any violations of the federal
securities laws in connection with our disclosure of the Processing Systems Intrusion and the alleged trading in our securities by certain of our
employees, including certain executive officers. We are cooperating with these inquiries.

We have been contacted by the Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council and informed that it will be making inquiries into the
Processing System Intrusion, and the Federal Trade Commission, by letters dated February 19, 2009, August 4, 2009, and March 10, 2010, has
requested that we provide information about our payment processing services and information security practices. Additionally, we have received
written or telephonic inquiries relating to the Processing System Intrusion from a number of state Attorneys General�s offices, including a Civil
Investigative Demand from the Louisiana Department of Justice Office of the Attorney General, the Canadian Privacy Commission, and other
government officials. We are cooperating with the government officials in response to each of these inquiries. Additional lawsuits may be filed
against us relating to the Processing System Intrusion and that additional inquiries from governmental agencies may be received or
investigations may be commenced.

Although we intend to defend the lawsuits, investigations and inquiries described above vigorously, we cannot predict the outcome of such
lawsuits, investigations and inquiries. Apart from damages claimed in such lawsuits and in other lawsuits relating to the Processing System
Intrusion that may be filed, we may be subject to fines or other obligations as a result of the government inquiries and investigations described
above and additional governmental inquiries or investigations relating to the Processing System Intrusion that may be commenced. The one card
brand with whom we have not reached a settlement (the �Non-Settling Card Brand�) has also asserted claims seeking to impose fines, penalties,
and other assessments against us or our sponsor banks (who would seek indemnification from us pursuant to our agreements with them) based
upon the Processing System Intrusion. By these claims, the Non-Settling Card Brand seeks to recover from us, or from our sponsor banks (who
would in turn seek to recover from us), assessments in respect of fraud losses and operating expenses (including card reissuance costs and
non-ordinary-course account monitoring expenses) that such card brand believes either it or its issuers to have incurred by reason of the
Processing System Intrusion, as well as fines and/or penalties by reason of our alleged failure to comply with such card brand�s operating
regulations. The amounts we are required to pay to defend against and/or resolve the claims by the Non-Settling Card Brand described above
could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

Since its announcement of the Processing System Intrusion on January 20, 2009 and through June 30, 2010, the Company has expensed a total
of $144.2 million, before reducing those charges by $30.7 million of total insurance recoveries. The majority of the total charges, or
approximately $114.7 million, related to consummated settlements of claims, settlements agreed upon, or settlements deemed likely to be agreed
upon in the near term. Approximately $29.5 million of the total charges were for legal fees and costs we incurred for investigations, defending
various claims and actions, remedial actions and crisis management services.

During the six months ended June 30, 2010, the Company recovered from its insurance providers approximately $26.8 million of the costs it
incurred for the Processing System Intrusion and expensed approximately $11.3 million for accruals, legal fees and costs it incurred for
defending various claims and actions, resulting in a net recovery of $15.5 million, or $0.24 per share. For the three months ended June 30, 2010,
the Company expensed a total of $4.9 million, or about $0.07 per share, respectively, associated with the Processing System Intrusion.

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2009, the Company expensed a total of $19.4 million and $32.0 million, respectively, or about
$0.32 and $0.53 per share, respectively, for accruals, legal fees and costs it incurred for defending various claims and actions associated with the
Processing System Intrusion.

At June 30, 2010, the Company carried a $42.3 million Reserve for Processing System Intrusion on its Consolidated Balance Sheet. The
majority of this Reserve related to:
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(i) the settlement agreement we entered into with MasterCard on May 19, 2010, which is expected to be consummated late in the third
quarter of 2010, and

(ii) a settlement offer deemed likely to be agreed upon in the near term with a claimant.
Notwithstanding its belief that it has strong defenses against the claim that is the subject of the settlement offer described in (ii) above, the
Company decided to make the settlement offer and engage in settlement discussions in attempts to avoid the costs and uncertainty of litigation.
The Company is prepared to vigorously defend itself against any unsettled claims relating to the Processing System Intrusion that have been
asserted against it and its sponsor banks to date. The Company feels it has strong defenses to all the claims that have been asserted against it and
its sponsor banks relating to the Processing System Intrusion.

Additional costs we expect to incur for legal fees and settlements related to the Processing System Intrusion will be recognized as incurred. Such
costs could be material and could adversely impact our results of operations, financial condition and cash flow.

On December 17, 2009, we entered into a settlement agreement and release with American Express to resolve potential claims and other
disputes among us and American Express (and its issuers) with respect to the Processing System Intrusion, and subsequently we paid
approximately $3.5 million in full and final satisfaction of any and all claims of American Express and its issuers arising from or relating to the
Processing System Intrusion. Such settlement agreement and release contains mutual releases by and between us and American Express (on
behalf of itself and its issuers) relating to the Processing System Intrusion.

On January 7, 2010, the Company, Heartland Bank, KeyBank National Association (�KeyBank,� and, together with Heartland Bank, the �Sponsor
Banks�), and Visa U.S.A. Inc., Visa International Service Association and Visa Inc. (collectively, �Visa�) entered into a settlement agreement (the
�Settlement Agreement�) to resolve potential claims and other disputes among the Company, the Sponsor Banks and Visa with respect to the
potential rights and claims of Visa and certain issuers of Visa-branded credit and debit cards related to the Processing System Intrusion. After
including a $780,000 credit for fines previously collected by Visa during 2009, the settlement amount paid by the Company under the Settlement
Agreement was $59.3 million. The costs of this settlement were included in the Company�s Provision for Processing System Intrusion on its
Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2009 and in its Reserve for Processing System Intrusion on its
Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2009.

On February 18, 2010, the Company entered into a bridge loan agreement (the �Bridge Loan Agreement�) with KeyBank, as administrative agent,
and KeyBank and Heartland Bank as bridge lenders. On that date, KeyBank made a bridge loan to the Company in the amount of $20.0 million
and Heartland Bank made a bridge loan in the amount of $8.0 million (collectively, the �Bridge Loan�), which are the maximum amounts that the
Company may borrow under the Bridge Loan Agreement. The Company must repay the Bridge Loan by February 17, 2011.

On February 18, 2010, the Company also entered into a Commitment Increase Agreement pursuant to the Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement dated as of May 30, 2008 (the �Commitment Increase Agreement�) whereby KeyBank as one of the lenders under the Amended and
Restated Credit Agreement agreed to increase its revolving credit commitment to us under the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement by
$25.0 million (the �Increased Credit Commitment�). The terms of the Increased Credit Commitment are similar to the terms of the Revolving
Credit Facility.

The proceeds of the Bridge Loan and the Increased Credit Commitment, together with a portion of our cash reserves, were used to fund the
settlement with Visa. The Settlement Agreement was consummated on February 18, 2010, with a payment of $58.6 million.

On May 19, 2010, the Company entered into a settlement agreement with MasterCard Worldwide (the �MasterCard Settlement Agreement�) to
resolve potential claims and other disputes among the Company, the Sponsor Banks and MasterCard related to the Processing System Intrusion.
Under the MasterCard Settlement Agreement, alternative recovery offers totaling $41.4 million were made to eligible MasterCard issuers with
respect to losses alleged to have been incurred by them as a result of the Processing System Intrusion. The $41.4 million includes a $6.6 million
credit for fines previously collected by
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MasterCard during 2009, so the maximum further amount to be paid by the Company under the MasterCard Settlement Agreement is $34.8
million. Payment of the final settlement amount is expected late in the third quarter of 2010, although consummation of the settlement is subject
to the satisfaction of certain conditions described in the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 19, 2010 and set forth in the
MasterCard Settlement Agreement, which is filed as Exhibit 10.1 to such Form 8-K. The costs of this settlement were included in the Company�s
Provision for Processing System Intrusion on its Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2009 and in its Reserve
for Processing System Intrusion on its Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2010.

Other Legal Proceedings

On December 16, 2008, a putative class action was filed against us in the Superior Court of California, County of San Diego, Ryan McInerney,
Hossein Vazir Zand v. Heartland Payment Systems, Inc. The plaintiffs purport to represent a putative class of individuals who allegedly were not
reimbursed by us for business expenses and whose compensation was allegedly reduced for their costs of doing business. The plaintiffs seek
unspecified monetary damages, penalties, injunctive and declaratory relief, and attorneys� fees and costs.

On September 9, 2009, VeriFone Israel Ltd. filed a lawsuit in the Northern District of California alleging patent infringement of U.S. Patent
No. 6,853,093 (the � �093 patent�) by the Company�s NP3000 payment terminals. VeriFone Israel seeks injunctive relief against the alleged
infringement and damages, including enhanced damages for willfulness and reasonable attorneys fees. On October 13, 2009, VeriFone Israel
Ltd. amended its complaint to add an additional plaintiff, VeriFone Holdings, Inc., and seeking Declaratory Judgment that VeriFone Holdings
was not involved in certain unfair business activity including Tortious Interference with Contract and Prospective Economic Advantage,
Tortious Refusal to Deal, Breach of Contract, Breach of Implied Duty of Good Faith and Fair Dealing, Unfair Competition and
Defamation. These declaratory judgment counts regarding VeriFone�s unfair business activities correspond to affirmative claims the Company
brought against VeriFone Holdings in New Jersey State Court, previously. The Company has not yet answered the complaint. This case has was
assigned to Hon. Charles R. Breyer. VeriFone Israel filed a notice of voluntary dismissal on February 15, 2010. On February 16, 2010, the
Company filed a Declaratory Judgment action in the Northern District of California seeking a judgment that it has not infringed the �093 patent
and that the �093 patent is not valid. On February 16, 2010, VeriFone Israel filed counterclaims in the Company�s New Jersey Lanham Act case
mirroring those it voluntarily dismissed in the Northern District of California. On April 22, 2010, the Company�s Declaratory Judgment action
was transferred to the District of New Jersey, where it has been assigned to Judge Mary L. Cooper. On June 8, 2010, Magistrate Judge Douglas
E. Arpert entered an Order staying all discovery in the case until September 7, 2010.

On November 6, 2009, VeriFone Holdings, Inc. filed a lawsuit in the Northern District of California alleging violations of the Lanham Act
(False Advertising) and California Laws (Unfair Business Practices). VeriFone Holdings sought a preliminary and permanent injunction against
Heartland and unspecified damages. The case was assigned to Hon. Phyllis Hamilton. VeriFone Holdings filed a notice of voluntary dismissal
on February 15, 2010. On February 16, 2010, VeriFone Holdings filed counterclaims in the Company�s New Jersey Lanham Act case mirroring
those it voluntarily dismissed in the Northern District of California.

In the ordinary course of our business, we are party to various legal actions, which we believe are incidental to the operation of our business. We
believe that the outcome of the proceedings to which we are currently a party will not have a material adverse effect on our financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk. Our primary market risk exposure is to changes in interest rates.

We have interest rate risk related to our payable to our sponsor banks. During each month, KeyBank and Heartland Bank advance interchange
fees to most of our merchants. We fund these advances first by applying a portion of our available cash and then by incurring a significant
payable to our sponsor banks,
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bearing interest at the prime rate. At June 30, 2010, our payable to our sponsor banks was $56.1 million. This payable is repaid on the first
business day of the following month out of fees collected from our merchants. During the quarter ended June 30, 2010 the average daily
interest-bearing balance of that payable was approximately $13.1 million. The outstanding balance of our payable to our sponsor banks is
directly related to our bankcard processing volume and also will fluctuate depending on the amount of our available cash. A hypothetical 100
basis point change in short-term interest rates applied to our average payable to sponsor banks would result in a change of approximately
$131,000 in annual pre-tax income.

We also incur interest rate risk on borrowings under our Amended and Restated Credit Agreement and our Bridge Loan. The Amended and
Restated Credit Agreement provides for a Revolving Credit Facility in an aggregate amount of $75 million and a Term Credit Facility with
$12.5 million outstanding at June 30, 2010. The Term Credit Facility requires amortizing payments in the amount of $2,083,333 on the last
business day of each fiscal quarter commencing March 31, 2009. Under the terms of the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, the Company
may borrow, at its option, at interest rates equal to one, two, three or nine month adjusted LIBOR rates or equal to the greatest of prime, the
secondary market rate for three month certificates of deposits plus 1% and the federal funds rate plus 0.50%, in each case plus a margin
determined by the Company�s current leverage ratio. At June 30, 2010, we had $28.0 million outstanding under our Bridge Loan. The Bridge
Loan bears interest at a rate of 1.0% plus the Alternate Base Rate. The Alternate Base Rate is the greater of (i) KeyBank�s prime rate, (ii) 0.5%
plus the weighted average of the overnight Federal funds rate and (iii) 1.0% plus one-month LIBOR. During the quarter ended June 30, 2010,
the average daily interest-bearing balances outstanding were $89.6 million under the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement and $28.0 million
under the Bridge Loan. A hypothetical 100 basis point increase in short-term interest rates applied to our average outstanding balance under the
Amended and Restated Credit Agreement and our Bridge Loan would result in a decline of approximately $896,000 and $280,000, respectively,
in annual pre-tax income.

While the bulk of our cash and cash-equivalents are held in checking accounts or money market funds, we do hold certain fixed-income
investments with maturities within three years. At June 30, 2010, a hypothetical 100 basis point increase in short-term interest rates would result
in an increase of approximately $49,000 in annual pre-tax income from money market fund holdings, but a decrease in the value of fixed-rate
investments of approximately $46,000. A hypothetical 100 basis point decrease in short-term interest rates would result in a decrease of
approximately $49,000 in annual pre-tax income from money market funds, but an increase in the value of fixed-rate instruments of
approximately $46,000.

Foreign Currency Risk. While substantially all of our business is conducted in U.S. dollars, our Canadian processing subsidiary, CPOS,
conducts its operations in Canadian dollars. Consequently, a portion of CPOS� revenues and expenses may be affected by fluctuations in foreign
currency exchange rates. We are also affected by fluctuations in exchange rates on assets and liabilities related to our CPOS subsidiary. We have
not hedged our translation risk on foreign currency exposure. For the six months ended June 30, 2010, foreign currency exposures had an
immaterial impact on our revenues and our net income. At June 30, 2010, fluctuations in exchange rates on CPOS� assets and liabilities decreased
our Other Comprehensive Income by $0.2 million.

We do not hold or engage in the trading of derivative financial, commodity or foreign exchange instruments.

Office Facilities

At June 30, 2010, we owned one facility and leased eleven facilities which we use for operational, sales and administrative purposes.

Our principal executive offices are located in approximately 9,300 square feet of leased office space on Nassau Street in Princeton, New Jersey.
The Nassau Street lease expires in May 2013.

We own 35 acres of land in Jeffersonville, Indiana, on which we have completed constructing our credit card operations and service center. The
state-of-the-art facility is comprised of 238,000 square feet of
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space supporting customer service, operations, deployment, day care, fitness, cafeteria, and large company meetings.

We also leased the following facilities as of June 30, 2010:

Location Square Feet Expiration
Alpharetta, Georgia 3,008 November 30, 2010
Chattanooga, Tennessee 9,461 September 30, 2014
Cleveland, Ohio 24,229 June 30, 2012
Colorado Springs, Colorado 9,920 March 1, 2014
Johnson City, Tennessee 45,000 May 1, 2011
Phoenix, Arizona 1,284 March 31, 2011
Plano, Texas 53,976 May 31, 2015 for 26,988 square feet. January 14,

2019 for 26,988 square feet.
Portland, Oregon 11,564 September 30, 2013
Toronto, Ontario, Canada 14,094 July 31, 2020
West Windsor Township, New Jersey 5,288 May 31, 2013

We believe that our facilities are suitable and adequate for our current business operations and, if necessary, could be replaced with little
disruption to our company. We periodically review our space requirements and may acquire new space to meet our business needs or consolidate
and dispose of or sublet facilities which are no longer required.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
See �Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations �Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About
Market Risk.�

Item 4. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of the Company�s management, including its Chief Executive Officer (�CEO�) and Chief
Financial Officer (�CFO�), the Company evaluated the effectiveness of the Company�s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of June 30, 2010. Based upon that evaluation, the CEO and CFO concluded that, as of the
end of the period covered by this report, the Company�s disclosure controls and procedures were effective and provided reasonable assurance that
the information required to be disclosed by the Company in reports filed under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified in the SEC�s rules and forms, and are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in
those reports is accumulated and communicated to management, including our CEO and CFO, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure.

Any system of controls, however well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the
system will be met. In addition, the design of any control system is based, in part, upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events.
Because of these and other inherent limitations of control systems, there is only reasonable assurance that the Company�s controls will succeed in
achieving their goals under all potential future conditions.

Changes in Internal Controls

During the quarter ended June 30, 2010, there was no change in the Company�s internal controls over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13
a-15(f) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company�s internal
controls over financial reporting.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings
Processing System Intrusion Legal Proceedings

To date, we have had several lawsuits filed against us and additional lawsuits may be filed. These include lawsuits which assert claims against us
by cardholders (including various putative class actions seeking in the aggregate to represent all cardholders in the United States whose
transaction information is alleged to have been placed at risk in the course of the Processing System Intrusion) and banks that issued payment
cards to cardholders whose transaction information is alleged to have been placed at risk in the course of the Processing System Intrusion
(including various putative class actions seeking to represent all financial institutions that issued payment cards to cardholders whose transaction
information is alleged to have been placed at risk in the course of the Processing System Intrusion), seeking damages allegedly arising out of the
Processing System Intrusion and other related relief. The actions generally assert various common-law claims such as claims for negligence and
breach of contract, as well as, in some cases, statutory claims such as violation of the Fair Credit Reporting Act, state data breach notification
statutes, and state unfair and deceptive practices statutes. The putative cardholder class actions seek various forms of relief including damages,
injunctive relief, multiple or punitive damages, attorneys� fees and costs. The putative financial institution class actions seek compensatory
damages, including recovery of the cost of issuance of replacement cards and losses by reason of unauthorized transactions, as well as injunctive
relief, attorneys� fees and costs.

On June 10, 2009, the Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation (the �JPML�) entered an order centralizing the class action cases for pre-trial
proceedings before the United States District Court for the Southern District of Texas, under the caption In re Heartland Payment Systems, Inc.
Customer Data Security Breach Litigation, MDL No. 2046, 4:09-md-2046. On August 24, 2009, the court appointed interim co-lead and liaison
counsel for the financial institution and consumer plaintiffs. On September 23, 2009, the financial institution plaintiffs filed a Master Complaint
in the MDL proceedings, which we moved to dismiss on October 23, 2009. Briefing on that motion to dismiss concluded on February 1, 2010
and the motion remains pending. On December 18, 2009, the Company and interim counsel for the consumer plaintiffs filed with the Court a
proposed settlement agreement, subject to court approval, of the consumer class action claims. On May 3, 2010, the Court entered an order
preliminarily certifying the settlement class, authorizing notice to the class to proceed, and scheduling a fairness hearing for December 10, 2010.

Other actions have been filed against us seeking damages allegedly arising out of the Processing System Intrusion and other related relief on an
individual basis. On October 14, 2009, the Clark County Indiana Teachers Federal Credit Union filed a complaint in the Clark Circuit Superior
Court of the State of Indiana. This action is captioned Clark County Indiana Teachers Federal Credit Union v. Heartland Payment Systems, Inc.,
Civ. No. 10D02-0910-LL-1209, and asserts claims for negligence and breach of contract. On April 12, 2010, we filed an answer to the
complaint. On July 30, 2010, the court entered an order staying the action until the MDL court rules on our motion to dismiss or until September
30, 2010, whichever occurs first. On December 28, 2009, Putnam Bank of Putnam, Connecticut filed a complaint in Connecticut Superior Court,
Putnam Bank v. Heartland Payment Systems, Inc., case no. WWM-CV-10-6001208-S. On January 20, 2010, we removed the action to the
United States District Court for the District of Connecticut, case no. 3:10-cv-0061 (JBA), and, on January 27, 2010, filed a Notice of Potential
Tag-Along Action, requesting centralization of the action with the MDL proceedings. On March 17, 2010, the action was centralized with the
MDL proceedings. On February 9, 2010, OmniAmerican Bank filed a complaint in the District Court for Collin County, Texas, Civ.
No. 380-00563-2012. The complaint identifies as a party in interest the Federal Insurance Company, which is alleged to have insured plaintiff
and reimbursed it for $1,005,077.50, less a $100,000 deductible. On March 15, 2010, we filed and answer to the complaint and removed the
action to the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Texas, case no. 4:10-cv-114, and, on March 16, 2010, filed a Notice of
Potential Tag-Along Action, requesting centralization of the action with the MDL proceedings. On April 29, 2010, the action was centralized
with the MDL proceedings. On February 18, 2010, Quad City Bank and Trust filed a
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complaint in the District Court for Collin County, Texas, Civ. No. 380-00721-2010. The complaint identifies as a party in interest the Federal
Insurance Company, which is alleged to have insured plaintiff and reimbursed it for $432,420.32, less a $100,000 deductible. On March 15,
2010, we filed and answer to the complaint and removed the action to the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Texas, case no.
4:10-cv-115 and, on March 16, 2010, filed a Notice of Potential Tag-Along Action, requesting centralization of the action with the MDL
proceedings. On April 29, 2010, the action was centralized with the MDL proceedings. On May 5, 2010, Napus Federal Credit Union filed a
complaint in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Texas, case no. 4:10-cv-1616, and the action was consolidated with the
MDL proceedings on June 9, 2010.

Putative Consumer Class Actions

Name of the Court Date Filed Principal Parties
United States District Court for the District of New Jersey January 23, 2009 Sansom and Engel v. Heartland Payment Systems, Inc. et

al., 3:09-cv-00335

United States District Court for the Northern District of Florida January 26, 2009 Read v. Heartland Payment Systems, Inc. et al.,
3:09-cv-00035

United States District Court for the District of Arizona January 29, 2009 Swenka v. Heartland Payment Systems, Inc. et al.,
2:09-cv-00179

United States District Court for the District of Kansas January 29, 2009 Barrett v. Heartland Payment Systems, Inc. et al.,
09-cv-2053

United States District Court for the District of New Jersey January 29, 2009 Merino v. Heartland Payment Systems, Inc. et al.,
3:09-cv-00439

United States District Court for the Middle District of Alabama February 2, 2009 Brown, Latham and Spencer v. Heartland Payment
Systems, Inc. et al., 2:09-cv-00086

United States District Court for the Eastern District of
California

February 2, 2009 Hilliard v. Heartland Payment Systems, Inc. et al.,
1:09-cv-00179

United States District Court for the District of New Jersey February 2, 2009 Kaissi v. Heartland Payment Systems, Inc. et al.,
3:09-cv-00540

United States District Court for the Northern District of Ohio February 3, 2009 McGinty and Carr v. Heartland Payment Systems, Inc. et
al., 1:09-cv-00244

United States District Court for the Southern District of Texas February 4, 2009 Watson v. Heartland Payment Systems, Inc. et al.,
4:09-cv-00325

United States District Court for the Eastern District of
Wisconsin

February 4, 2009 Anderson and Hoven v. Heartland Payment Systems, Inc.
et al., 2:09-cv-00113

United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida February 6, 2009 Balloveras v. Heartland Payment Systems, Inc. et al.,
1:09-cv-20326

United States District Court for the Southern District of
California

February 25, 2009 Mata v. Heartland Payment Systems, Inc. et al.,
3:09-cv-00376

United States District Court for the Western District of
Missouri

February 26, 2009 McLaughlin v. Heartland Payment Systems, Inc. et al.,
6:09-cv-3069
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Name of the Court Date Filed Principal Parties
United States District Court for the District of New Jersey February 27, 2009 Rose v. Heartland Payment Systems, Inc. et al.,

3:09-cv-00917

United States District Court for the Southern District of Illinois April 21, 2009 Leavell v. Heartland Payment Systems, Inc. et al.,
3:09-cv-00270

United States District Court for the Eastern District of
Arkansas

April 30, 2009 Brown v. Heartland Payment Systems, Inc. et al.,
4:09-cv-00384

Putative Financial Institution Class Actions

Name of the Court Date Filed Principal Parties
United States District Court for the District of New Jersey February 6, 2009 Lone Summit Bank v. Heartland Payment Systems, Inc. et

al., 3:09-cv-00581

United States District Court for the District of New Jersey February 13, 2009 TriCentury Bank et al. v. Heartland Payment Systems, Inc.
et al., 3:09-cv-00697

United States District Court for the Southern District of Texas February 16, 2009 Lone Star National Bank v. Heartland Payment Systems,
Inc. et al., 7:09-cv-00064

United States District Court for the District of New Jersey February 20, 2009 Amalgamated Bank et al. v. Heartland Payment Systems,
Inc. et al., 3:09-cv-00776

United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida March 19, 2009 First Bankers Trust Co., N.A. v. Heartland Payment
Systems, Inc. et al., 4:09-cv-00825

United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida March 31, 2009 PBC Credit Union et al. v. Heartland Payment Systems,
Inc. et al., 9:09-cv-80481

United States District Court for the Southern District of Texas April 22, 2009 Community West Credit Union, et al. v. Heartland
Payment Systems, Inc. et al., 4:09-cv-01201

United States District Court for the Southern District of Texas April 22, 2009 Eden Financial Corp. v. Heartland Payment Systems, Inc.
et al., 4:09-cv-01203

United States District Court for the Southern District of Texas April 28, 2009 Heritage Trust Federal Credit Union v. Heartland
Payment Systems, Inc. et al., 4:09-cv-01284

United States District Court for the Southern District of Texas May 1, 2009 Pennsylvania State Employees Credit Union v. Heartland
Payment Systems, Inc. et al., 4:09-cv-01330

On January 19, 2010, financial institution plaintiffs, including certain of the named plaintiffs in the MDL proceedings, commenced an action
against our sponsor banks in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Texas, captioned Lonestar National Bank, N.A. et al. v.
KeyBank NA, et al., Civ. No. 4:10-cv-00171. This action against our sponsor banks asserts common-law claims similar to those asserted against
us, and likewise seeks to represent all financial institutions that issued payment cards to cardholders whose transaction information is alleged to
have been placed at risk in the course of the Processing System Intrusion. On March 4, 2010, this action was transferred to the judge
overseeing the MDL proceedings. On April 9, 2010, our sponsor banks moved to dismiss the complaint. Briefing on that motion to dismiss
concluded on June 7, 2010 and the motion remains pending. The sponsor banks could seek indemnification from us in regard to the claims
asserted in this action.
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We have been advised by the SEC that it has commenced an informal inquiry and we have been advised by the United States Attorney for the
District of New Jersey that it has commenced an investigation, in each case to determine whether there have been any violations of the federal
securities laws in connection with our disclosure of the Processing Systems Intrusion and the alleged trading in our securities by certain of our
employees, including certain executive officers. We are cooperating with these inquiries.

We have been contacted by the Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council and informed that it will be making inquiries into the
Processing System Intrusion, and the Federal Trade Commission, by letters dated February 19, 2009, August 4, 2009, and March 10, 2010, has
requested that we provide information about our payment processing services and information security practices. Additionally, we have received
written or telephonic inquiries relating to the Processing System Intrusion from a number of state Attorneys General�s offices, including a Civil
Investigative Demand from the Louisiana Department of Justice Office of the Attorney General, the Canadian Privacy Commission, and other
government officials. We are cooperating with the government officials in response to each of these inquiries. Additional lawsuits may be filed
against us relating to the Processing System Intrusion and that additional inquiries from governmental agencies may be received or
investigations may be commenced.

Although we intend to defend the lawsuits, investigations and inquiries described above vigorously, we cannot predict the outcome of such
lawsuits, investigations and inquiries. Apart from damages claimed in such lawsuits and in other lawsuits relating to the Processing System
Intrusion that may be filed, we may be subject to fines or other obligations as a result of the government inquiries and investigations described
above and additional governmental inquiries or investigations relating to the Processing System Intrusion that may be commenced. The one card
brand with whom we have not reached a settlement (the �Non-Settling Card Brand�) has also asserted claims seeking to impose fines, penalties,
and other assessments against us or our sponsor banks (who would seek indemnification from us pursuant to our agreements with them) based
upon the Processing System Intrusion. By these claims, the Non-Settling Card Brand seeks to recover from us, or from our sponsor banks (who
would in turn seek to recover from us) assessments in respect of fraud losses and operating expenses (including card reissuance costs and
non-ordinary-course account monitoring expenses) that such card brand believes either it or its issuers to have incurred by reason of the
Processing System Intrusion, as well as fines and/or penalties by reason of our alleged failure to comply with such card brand�s operating
regulations. The amounts we are required to pay to defend against and/or resolve the claims by the Non-Settling Card Brand described above
could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

Since its announcement of the Processing System Intrusion on January 20, 2009 and through June 30, 2010, the Company has expensed a total
of $144.2 million, before reducing those charges by $30.7 million of total insurance recoveries. The majority of the total charges, or
approximately $114.7 million, related to consummated settlements of claims, settlements agreed upon, or settlements deemed likely to be agreed
upon in the near term. Approximately $29.5 million of the total charges were for legal fees and costs we incurred for investigations, defending
various claims and actions, remedial actions and crisis management services.

During the six months ended June 30, 2010, the Company recovered from its insurance providers approximately $26.8 million of the costs it
incurred for the Processing System Intrusion and expensed approximately $11.3 million for accruals, legal fees and costs it incurred for
defending various claims and actions, resulting in a net recovery of $15.5 million, or $0.24 per share. For the three months ended June 30, 2010,
the Company expensed a total of $4.9 million, or about $0.07 per share, respectively, associated with the Processing System Intrusion.

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2009, the Company expensed a total of $19.4 million and $32.0 million, respectively, or about
$0.32 and $0.53 per share, respectively, for accruals, legal fees and costs it incurred for defending various claims and actions associated with the
Processing System Intrusion.

At June 30, 2010, the Company carried a $42.3 million Reserve for Processing System Intrusion on its Consolidated Balance Sheet. The
majority of this Reserve related to:
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(i) the settlement agreement we entered into with MasterCard on May 19, 2010, which is expected to be consummated late in the third
quarter of 2010, and

(ii) a settlement offer deemed likely to be agreed upon in the near term with a claimant.
Notwithstanding its belief that it has strong defenses against the claim that is the subject of the settlement offer described in (ii) above, the
Company decided to make the settlement offer and engage in settlement discussions in attempts to avoid the costs and uncertainty of litigation.
The Company is prepared to vigorously defend itself against any unsettled claims relating to the Processing System Intrusion that have been
asserted against it and its sponsor banks to date. The Company feels it has strong defenses to all the claims that have been asserted against it and
its sponsor banks relating to the Processing System Intrusion.

Additional costs we expect to incur for legal fees and settlements related to the Processing System Intrusion will be recognized as incurred. Such
costs could be material and could adversely impact our results of operations, financial condition and cash flow.

On December 17, 2009, we entered into a settlement agreement and release with American Express to resolve potential claims and other
disputes among us and American Express (and its issuers) with respect to the Processing System Intrusion, and subsequently we paid
approximately $3.5 million in full and final satisfaction of any and all claims of American Express and its issuers arising from or relating to the
Processing System Intrusion. Such settlement agreement and release contains mutual releases by and between us and American Express (on
behalf of itself and its issuers) relating to the Processing System Intrusion.

On January 7, 2010, the Company, Heartland Bank, KeyBank National Association (�KeyBank,� and, together with Heartland Bank, the �Sponsor
Banks�), and Visa U.S.A. Inc., Visa International Service Association and Visa Inc. (collectively, �Visa�) entered into a settlement agreement (the
�Settlement Agreement�) to resolve potential claims and other disputes among the Company, the Sponsor Banks and Visa with respect to the
potential rights and claims of Visa and certain issuers of Visa-branded credit and debit cards related to the Processing System Intrusion. After
including a $780,000 credit for fines previously collected by Visa during 2009, the settlement amount paid by the company under the Settlement
Agreement was $59.3 million. The costs of this settlement were included in the Company�s Provision for Processing System Intrusion on its
Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2009 and in its Reserve for Processing System Intrusion on its
Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2009.

On February 18, 2010, the Company entered into a bridge loan agreement (the �Bridge Loan Agreement�) with KeyBank, as administrative agent,
and KeyBank and Heartland Bank as bridge lenders. On that date, KeyBank made a bridge loan to the Company in the amount of $20.0 million
and Heartland Bank made a bridge loan in the amount of $8.0 million (collectively, the �Bridge Loan�), which are the maximum amounts that the
Company may borrow under the Bridge Loan Agreement. The Company must repay the Bridge Loan by February 17, 2011.

On February 18, 2010, the Company also entered into a Commitment Increase Agreement pursuant to the Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement dated as of May 30, 2008 (the �Commitment Increase Agreement�) whereby KeyBank, as one of the lenders under the Amended and
Restated Credit Agreement, agreed to increase its revolving credit commitment to us under the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement by
$25.0 million (the �Increased Credit Commitment�). The terms of the Increased Credit Commitment are similar to the terms of the Revolving
Credit Facility.

The proceeds of the Bridge Loan and the Increased Credit Commitment, together with a portion of our cash reserves, were used to fund the
settlement with Visa. The Settlement Agreement was consummated on February 18, 2010, with a payment of $58.6 million.

On May 19, 2010, the Company entered into a settlement agreement with MasterCard Worldwide (the �MasterCard Settlement Agreement�) to
resolve potential claims and other disputes among the Company, the Sponsor Banks and MasterCard related to the Processing System Intrusion.
Under the MasterCard Settlement Agreement, alternative recovery offers totaling $41.4 million were made to eligible MasterCard issuers with
respect to losses alleged to have been incurred by them as a result of the Processing System Intrusion. The $41.4 million includes a $6.6 million
credit for fines previously collected by
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MasterCard during 2009, so the maximum further amount to be paid by the Company under the MasterCard Settlement Agreement is $34.8
million. Payment of the final settlement amount is expected late in the third quarter of 2010, although consummation of the settlement is subject
to the satisfaction of certain conditions described in the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 19, 2010 and set forth in the
MasterCard Settlement Agreement, which is filed as Exhibit 10.1 to such Form 8-K. The costs of this settlement were included in the Company�s
Provision for Processing System Intrusion on its Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2009 and in its Reserve
for Processing System Intrusion on its Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2010.

Other Legal Proceedings

On December 16, 2008, a putative class action was filed against us in the Superior Court of California, County of San Diego, Ryan McInerney,
Hossein Vazir Zand v. Heartland Payment Systems, Inc. The plaintiffs purport to represent a putative class of individuals who allegedly were not
reimbursed by us for business expenses and whose compensation was allegedly reduced for their costs of doing business. The plaintiffs seek
unspecified monetary damages, penalties, injunctive and declaratory relief, and attorneys� fees and costs.

On September 9, 2009, VeriFone Israel Ltd. filed a lawsuit in the Northern District of California alleging patent infringement of U.S. Patent
No. 6,853,093 (the � �093 patent�) by the Company�s NP3000 payment terminals. VeriFone Israel seeks injunctive relief against the alleged
infringement and damages, including enhanced damages for willfulness and reasonable attorneys fees. On October 13, 2009, VeriFone Israel
Ltd. amended its complaint to add an additional plaintiff, VeriFone Holdings, Inc., and seeking Declaratory Judgment that VeriFone Holdings
was not involved in certain unfair business activity including Tortious Interference with Contract and Prospective Economic Advantage,
Tortious Refusal to Deal, Breach of Contract, Breach of Implied Duty of Good Faith and Fair Dealing, Unfair Competition and
Defamation. These declaratory judgment counts regarding VeriFone�s unfair business activities correspond to affirmative claims the Company
brought against VeriFone Holdings in New Jersey State Court, previously. The Company has not yet answered the complaint. This case has was
assigned to Hon. Charles R. Breyer. VeriFone Israel filed a notice of voluntary dismissal on February 15, 2010. On February 16, 2010, the
Company filed a Declaratory Judgment action in the Northern District of California seeking a judgment that it has not infringed the �093 patent
and that the �093 patent is not valid. On February 16, 2010, VeriFone Israel filed counterclaims in the Company�s New Jersey Lanham Act case
mirroring those it voluntarily dismissed in the Northern District of California. On April 22, 2010, the Company�s Declaratory Judgment action
was transferred to the District of New Jersey, where it has been assigned to Judge Mary L. Cooper. On June 8, 2010, Magistrate Judge Douglas
E. Arpert entered an Order staying all discovery in the case until September 7, 2010.

On November 6, 2009, VeriFone Holdings, Inc. filed a lawsuit in the Northern District of California alleging violations of the Lanham Act
(False Advertising) and California Laws (Unfair Business Practices). VeriFone Holdings sought a preliminary and permanent injunction against
Heartland and unspecified damages. The case was assigned to Hon. Phyllis Hamilton. VeriFone Holdings filed a notice of voluntary dismissal
on February 15, 2010. On February 16, 2010, VeriFone Holdings filed counterclaims in the Company�s New Jersey Lanham Act case mirroring
those it voluntarily dismissed in the Northern District of California.

In the ordinary course of our business, we are party to various legal actions, which we believe are incidental to the operation of our business. We
believe that the outcome of the proceedings to which we are currently a party will not have a material adverse effect on our financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.

Item 1A. Risk Factors
There have been no material changes in our Risk Factors as previously reported in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2009.
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Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds
(a) None

(b) Not applicable

(c) Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers

Under authorizations from its Board of Directors, we repurchased an aggregate of 2,924,684 shares of our common stock as part of publicly
announced plans through June 30, 2010 at a cost of $65.1 million, or an average cost of $22.25 per share. No common stock was repurchased
during the six months ended June 30, 2010. During the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, we repurchased 350,400 shares,
781,584 shares and 731,500, respectively, of our common stock at average per share costs of $9.14, $23.02 and $25.78. At June 30, 2010, the
Company has remaining authorization to repurchase up to 175,316 additional shares of its common stock.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities
Not applicable.

Item 4. (Removed And Reserved)

Item 5. Other Information
None

Item 6. Exhibits

Exhibit
Number Description

10.1** Amendment and Restatement of Heartland Payment Systems, Inc.�s 2008 Equity Incentive Plan (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 18, 2010).

10.2 Settlement Agreement between Heartland Payment Systems, Inc. and MasterCard International Incorporated dated May 19,
2010 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 19, 2010).

31.1* Certification of the Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2* Certification of the Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1* Certification of the Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2* Certification of the Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

* Filed herewith
** Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Date: August 6, 2010

HEARTLAND PAYMENT SYSTEMS, INC.

(Registrant)

By: /S/    ROBERT O. CARR        

Robert O. Carr
Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

By: /S/    ROBERT H.B. BALDWIN, JR.        
Robert H.B. Baldwin, Jr.

President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit
Number Description

10.1** Amendment and Restatement of Heartland Payment Systems, Inc.�s 2008 Equity Incentive Plan (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 18, 2010).

10.2 Settlement Agreement between Heartland Payment Systems, Inc. and MasterCard International Incorporated dated May 19,
2010 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 19, 2010).

31.1* Certification of the Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2* Certification of the Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1* Certification of the Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2* Certification of the Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

* Filed herewith
** Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

Edgar Filing: HEARTLAND PAYMENT SYSTEMS INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 92


